CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA
PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD
REGULAR MEETING
THURSDAY, JANUARY 20, 2022, IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION MEETING
AGENDA

ZOOM Meeting Link:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88067162753?pwd=c1VSY2RpYUI5QXJgQzhOeTFQbG9vUTO9

Meeting ID: 880 6716 2753 Access Code: 835045
Toll Free Numbers: 833548 0276 833 548 0282 877 853 5247 888 788 0099

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA

ELECTION: Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning Commission

APPEARANCE REQUESTS
ANNOUNCEMENTS
MINUTES: Draft minutes from the meetings on November 18, 2021

PUBLIC HEARING

1. RESOLUTION 2022-01: A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 2021 ANNUAL
REPORT AND FILING THE SAME WITH THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL

2. RESOLUTION 2022-02: A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO PLACE A CELLTOWER ON A LOT ZONED
HIGH-DENSITY RESIDENTIAL AT LOT 9, CAPE CHEERFUL SUBDIVISION, PLAT 89-11, AIRD

OLD BUSINESS
No Items

NEW BUSINESS

1. RESOLUTION 2022-01: A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 2021 ANNUAL
REPORT AND FILING THE SAME WITH THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL

2. RESOLUTION 2022-02: ARESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO PLACE A CELLTOWER ON A LOT ZONED
HIGH-DENSITY RESIDENTIAL AT LOT 9, CAPE CHEERFUL SUBDIVISION, PLAT 89-11, AIRD

WORKSESSION
1. Draft CMMP Presentation

ADJOURNMENT

=


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88067162753?pwd=c1VSY2RpYUI5QXJqQzhOeTFQbG9vUT09

10.

Principles of the Unalaska Planning Commission

The Position: In any community, the position of Planning Commissioner is a highly respected and
honored one.

The Job: The job of Planning Commissioner is to serve the public, as representatives of the City
Council and to the best of their ability, in ensuring sound planning and growth management in
Unalaska. All decisions of the Planning Commission should be based on sound planning
principles and practices, and not on the personal opinion of individual Planning Commissioners.
Once the Planning Commission makes a recommendation to the City Council, the job of the
Planning Commissioners and Planning Commission is over, in terms of that particular action.

Integrity: Planning Commissioners are appointed by City Council. The actions, behavior, and
comportment of each Planning Commissioner reflect not only on that Planning Commissioner’s
integrity — but also on the integrity of the City Council and of the entire City government.

Collaboration: An individual Planning Commissioner is not a “lone wolf,” but is part of a collective
body. As such, each Planning Commissioner is expected to act in a collaborative manner with
his and her fellow Planning Commissioners.

Respect Each Other: While it is understandable to sometimes disagree with your fellow Planning
Commissioners on issues brought before the body, and appropriate to publically vocalize that
disagreement during Planning Commission meetings, a Planning Commissioner should always
respect the opinion of their fellow Commissioners and treat each other with respect.

Majority Rules: It is important to remember that, at the end of the day, the majority rules. So,
after each action is brought before the body, discussed, and voted upon, Planning
Commissioners must accept and respect the rule of the majority — even if the ruling was counter
to an individual Commissioner’s position.

Respect Staff: A Planning Commissioner should respect the opinion of City Planning Staff,
whether the Planning Commissioner agrees with staff or not. Planning Staff Members are
professionals who are employed to serve not only the Planning Commission and general public,
but the City Council.

The Las Vegas Rule: What comes before the Planning Commission must stay before the
Planning Commission. This means there can be no outside negotiating with petitioners or with
the public regarding applications brought before the Commission. And, all discussions — pro or
con — concerning a petition before the Planning Commission, must take place solely within
Planning Commission meetings.

Respect Applicants and Public: Each Planning Commissioner must always show professionalism
and respect for applicants and the general public — regardless of the position held by that
Planning Commissioner or by the Planning Commission.

Upholding the Principles: Any member of the Planning Commission who finds that he or she
cannot uphold and abide by the above principles should resign from the Commission.

N



PROCEDURES FOR THE CHAIR

Approval of Minutes

The Chair states: “The minutes were included in the packet. Are there any corrections to the minutes?” [pause to wait

for commissioners to object]. “Hearing none, if there are no objections, the minutes are approved as printed.”

OR

If there are objects to the minutes, then...

ok wN e

Ask for a motion to approve the minutes as printed. And a second.

Facilitate Commission discussion.

Amendments will need a motion and a second.

When there is no more discussion, call for a vote on any amendments.

Continue discussion until there is none further, then call for a vote on the minutes as amended.

Public Hearings

O NV A WNPRE

Open the public hearing.

Notify the public that they may raise their hand and speak from their seats.

Read the title of the first item.

Ask if any member of the public wishes to speak to the item. They may do so by raising their hand.
When discussion has ended, read the title of the second item.

Again ask for public discussion.

Continue until all items on the public hearing are complete.

NOTE: No commissioners or staff should give any input during the public hearing.

Resolutions under new business or old business

L N U

11.
12.

13.
14.

Read the title of the first resolution.

Ask for declaration of ex parte communications and conflicts of interest from commissioners.

Any question of whether a conflict of interest exists will be settled by a majority vote of the Commission.
Members with a conflict will be asked to sit in the audience during this discussion/vote.

Ask for staff presentation.

Ask for questions from Commissioners of staff.

Ask for a presentation from the applicant.

Ask for questions from Commissioners of the applicant.

Ask for a motion to approve the resolution. And a second.

Facilitate commission discussion.

. If any members of the public have signed up to speak on the topic, they will be given a chance to speak. The

chair must set a time limit (such as 2 minutes) to each public comment. Time limits can be objected by
commissioners and subsequently put to a vote if necessary.

Following public testimony, continue commission discussion until there is nothing further.

NOTE: Each member of the public only gets one chance to speak, but anyone who signs up with staff before the
commission votes shall be given their one chance to speak before the vote occurs.

Call for a vote.

Repeat for each resolution on the agenda.

(oM



City of Unalaska
UNALASKA PLANNING COMMISSION

P. O. Box 610 = Unalaska, Alaska 99685

Regular Meeting (907) 581-1251 » www.ci.unalaska.ak.us Unalaska City Hall
Thursday, November 18, Council Chambers
2021 43 Raven Way
6:00 p.m.

Travis Swangel, Chairman Commission Members
Commission Members Vicki Williams
lan Bagley MINUTES Helen Brown

Virginia Hatfield

1. Callto order. Commissioner Swangel called the Meeting of the Unalaska Planning Commission to order
at 6:55 pm, on November 18, 2021, in the Unalaska City Hall council chambers.

2. Roll call
Present: Absent:
Vicki Williams Rainier Marquez Virginia Hatfield
Travis Swangel
lan Bagley

3. Reuvisions to the Agenda — None.
4. Appearance Requests — None.
5. Announcements — None.

6. Minutes — Marquez made a motion to approve minutes from October 21, 2021. Williams seconded.
October 21st minutes approved 3/0.

7. Public Hearing — None.

Old Business — None.
9. New Business — None.

10. Work session — Hatfield made a motion to move into work session. Bagley seconded. Motion passed 5/0.
Discussion of Capital and Major Maintenance Plan for the fiscal years 2023 through 2032.

Adjournment — Meeting adjourned at 7:20 pm.

William Homka Date
Planning Director

Date

Travis Swangel
Acting, Planning Commission Chairman

Prepared by Jasmine Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant

>


http://www.ci.unalaska.ak.us/

CITY OF UNALASKA
PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD
2021 ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report is designed to serve multiple functions: to summarize the planning activities
of the Unalaska Planning Commission; to serve as a resource document; to project future
planning needs and activities; and to meet the requirements of § 2.60.090, Unalaska Code of
Ordinances.

The Planning Commission, Platting Board, Department of Planning, and Unalaska City Council
refer to the adopted Comprehensive Plan, Platting and Subdivision Regulations, Zoning Code
of Ordinances, Zoning Map, and other applicable codes for all decisions rendered.

The following residents of Unalaska served on the City of Unalaska’s Planning Commission
and Platting Board in 2021.:

Chair, Travis Swangel
Vice Chair, Viki Williams
Helen Brown
lan Bagley
Jason Gates
Virginia Hatfield
Rainier Marquez

The Planning Commission and Platting Board are supported by the City of Unalaska’s
Planning Department, which consists of:

William Homka, AICP, Planning Director
Thomas Roufos, Associate Planner
Cameron Dean, GIS Administrator
Jasmine Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant

o



PLANNING COMMISSION AND PLATTING BOARD
RESOLUTION 2022-01

In accordance with § 2.60.090 of the Unalaska Code of Ordinances, the City of Unalaska’s
Planning Commission officially adopts the following annual report, filing the same with the
Unalaska City Council.

CITY OF UNALASKA
PLANNING COMMISSION

BY:

Commission Chair

William Homka
Secretary of the Commission

DATE OF ADOPTION:

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2021 Annual Report Page 2 of 7
6



INTRODUCTION

Alaska State law gives incorporated municipalities the authority and responsibility for planning,
platting, and land use regulation. In addition to providing for the orderly and efficient use of
land and other resources, planning can establish ground rules for development for the whole
community and provide the means by which residents participate in important decisions about
their community’s future. With effective planning, a community can define its character and
realize tangible benefits.

The Unalaska Code of Ordinances establishes the Planning Commission and Platting Board to
help assure orderly growth of Unalaska and offers additional guidance regarding their
functions, power and duties, which include:

e To recognize and utilize such basic information necessary to understand past trends,
present conditions, and forces affecting community growth and development;

e To prepare and keep current a Comprehensive Plan for meeting present requirements and
future needs for community growth and development as may be foreseen by the
Commission/Board;

e To establish principles and policies for guiding actions affecting growth in the city;

e To prepare and to recommend to the City Council ordinances, regulations, or other
proposals promoting orderly development indicated as desirable by the Comprehensive
Plan;

e To exercise jurisdiction over platting as provided in Chapter 8.08, and to act upon requests
for variances, conditional uses, and zone amendments as provided in Chapter 8.12;

e To keep the City Council and general public informed and advised as to matters before the
Commission/Board;

e To conduct such meetings, as required, to gather information necessary for the drafting,
establishment, and maintenance of the Comprehensive Plan and the ordinances and
regulations relating to it; and

e To perform other duties lawfully assigned to the Commission/Board or which have a
bearing on the preparation or accomplishment of the Comprehensive Plan.

§ 2.60.090 of the Unalaska Code of Ordinances requires each board and committee to submit
an annual report which summarizes the activities which have occurred during the previous
year. The Annual Report is a mechanism for monitoring those activities and for presenting to
the City Council the goals and objectives for Planning in the coming year.

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2021 Annual Report Page 3 of 7
7



SUMMARY OF PLANNING ACTIONS FOR 2021

I. General Statistics (January 1, 2021 — December 31, 2021)

Application Type

Considered or Reviewed/
Granted, Approved or Formally Recommended

2019 2020 2021
Variance 2/1 2/2 2/0
Conditional Use 4/4 1/1 4/4
Zone Amendment 1/1 1/1 -
Property Acquisitions - -
Code Revisions 1/1 - -
Plats 1 3 2/2
Planning Documents 3/3 3/3 -
TOTAL MEETINGS 10 6 7

Il. Planning Commission Recommendations to Council

The Planning Commission recommended no Code Revisions and two Planning Documents to the

City Council for action in 2021.

February 18, 2021: Approved
Resolution 2021-01 Annual Report
(Planning Document) and filed with
City Council

The Planning Commission through Resolution 2021-01
approved the Planning Commission and Platting Board 2020
Annual Report, which reviewed the year in Planning in
Unalaska.

February 18, 2021:, Approved
resolution 2021-02 declaring
vacancy

The Planning Commission approved Resolution 2021-02 a
resolution in appreciation of and accepting the resignation of
Jason Gates, who as a member of the City of Unalaska
Planning Commission provided valuable service to the City of
Unalaska, and declaring the seat vacant effective January 9,
2021.

February 18, 2021: Work session
reviewing the draft FY22-31 CMMP

Work session item to discuss the draft FY22-31 Capital
Maintenance and Management Plan (CMMP) and provide
comments.

October 21, 2021: Approved
resolution 2021-13 declaring
vacancy

The Planning Commission approved Resolution 2021-02 a
resolution in appreciation of and accepting the resignation of
Helen Brown, who as a member of the City of Unalaska
Planning Commission provided valuable service to the City of
Unalaska, and declaring the seat vacant effective June 17,
2021.

October 21, 2021: Work session
discussing the FY23-32 CMMP

Work session item to discuss the FY22-32 Capital
Maintenance and Management Plan (CMMP) and provide
comments.

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2021 Annual Report Page 4 of 7

8




November 18, 2021: Work session
discussing the FY23-32 CMMP

Work session item to discuss the FY22-32 Capital
Maintenance and Management Plan (CMMP) and provide
comments.

lll. Planning Commission Actions and Activities

The Planning Commission & Platting Board approved zero (0) Variances and three (3) Conditional

Use Permits in 2021.

February 18, 2021: Approved
Resolution 2021-03, a conditional
use permit

The Planning Commission through Resolution 2021-03
approved a Head Start facility on Biorka Dr.

March 18, 2021: Approved
Resolution 2021-05, a conditional
use permit

The Planning Commission through Resolution 2021-05
approved water booster pump on Generals Hill

May 20, 2021: Approved
Resolution 2021-08, a conditional
use permit

The Planning Commission through Resolution 2021-08
approved a triplex on a lot zoned Single Family Duplex on
Haystack

May 20, 2021: Approved
Resolution 2021-09, a conditional
use permit

The Planning Commission through Resolution 2021-09
approved a triplex on a lot zoned Single Family Duplex on
Thompson Cir

IV. Platting Board Actions

The Planning Commission & Platting Board approved two (2) subdivision plats in 2021.

March 18, 2021: Approved
Resolution 2021-04, a preliminary
plat

The Planning Commission through Resolution 2021-04
approved a preliminary plat of Darsney-Warren Subdivision to
allow construction of the Generals Hill Booster Pump

May 20, 2021: Approved
Resolution 2021-06, a preliminary
plat

The Planning Commission through Resolution 2021-06
approved a preliminary plat of Trey Henning Subdivision

V. Summary of Appeals Cases and Actions:

The Planning Commission did not hear any appeals of administrative decisions.

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2021 Annual Report Page 5 of 7

9




VI. Department of Planning Activities:

The Department of Planning’s primary responsibility is coordinating community planning and
development, land use, and capital growth within the City of Unalaska. Services include assisting the
public, Mayor and City Council, Planning Commission, and other City departments by providing
information, guidance, and direction on land use issues and regulations. Under the guidance of the
department, the City’s annual five-year capital improvement, replacement, and maintenance program is
developed. The department also initiates and directs studies and reports relating to long and short-term
planning needed for both community growth and development, in accordance with the Comprehensive
Plan.

In addition to the involvement in the items described in previous sections, Departmental activities and
accomplishments for 2021 include the following:

¢ Negotiated Agreements: Coordinated the negotiation and approval of:

1. Tideland leases and easements which will allow for businesses to expand operations in our
community and help to diversify Unalaska’s economic base, as well as provide access for
public works projects.

2. Continued to assist Public Works with the Generals Hill Booster Pump project.

3. Negotiated a joint trenching agreement with GCI to install conduit for a City fiber network.
The department also coordinated with Engineering to review plans and permits for the GCI
fiber project.

4. Continued to serve on the geothermal City team negotiating the implementation of the PPA
with OCCP.

e GIS Improvements. Staff have improved accuracy and availability of GIS resources internally and
to the public.

e Planning Commissioner Training: Planning staff arranged for Commissioners Williams and
Brown to participate in virtual Commissioner Training at the 2021 Alaska Planning Conference held
in Anchorage in February, 2021.

e Community Support Grants: The Planning Department administers the community support grant
program. The Planning Department received 9 Community Grant Applications from different non-
profit organizations around the City of Unalaska. These applications were reviewed, critiqued, and
sent back for corrections before discussing financial matters to the City Council. Once applications
had come back through, evaluations were conducted. Planning designed a means for the City
Council to establish the sums for the Community Support Grants.

e Code Enforcement: The Planning Department led an effort by Fire, Public Safety, Public Works
and Clerks to respond to a nuisance complaint and numerous zoning violations on 14 properties on
Choate Lane. An long-running enforcement issue at 176-180 Chernofski involving Planning, Public
Works, Fire, Public Safety and the City Attorney is currently in court.

e Grants: The Planning Department applied for a FY22 EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant.
Surveys: The Planning Department conducted numerous surveys on COVID, community health
needs on behalf of the IFHS Clinic and the National Community Survey.

e Other:

1. Staff participate in the Airport Masterplan Update Stakeholder Advisory Committee,
Amaknak Formerly Used Defense Site Restoration Advisory Board, City CARES Grant
Committee and the Alaska chapter of the American Planning Association.

2. Staff serve on the IFHS Clinic board and PCR Advisory Committee, as well as volunteer with
the Fire Department and high school athletics.

3. The department assisted with the planning and City presentation for the legislative visit and
tour.

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2021 Annual Report Page 6 of 7
10



e CMMP Process:

1. Taking advantage of the more efficient process implemented last year, the Planning
Department produced a 10-year CMMP, rather than the 5-year plan done previously.

2. The CMMP process guide for FY23 was updated by presenting City Council the changes to
the schedule, ranking system, and requested their individual values for ranking categories.
This is an annual process and was completed in October and November. This continues
the effort to generate transparency and alignment with City Council’'s expectations for the
budget.

VII. Departmental goals for 2022 include the following:

Continue improving process of zoning and public nuisance code enforcement as minor offenses.
Expand online GIS access, improve mapping on mobile devices and train staff in new programs.
Update the Comprehensive Plan as the current plan is nearing the end of its lifespan and a new
plan is required in order to provide guidance for community facility and infrastructure investments.
Work with Engineering / Permitting to improve the permitting and review process.

Planning Commission & Platting Board 2021 Annual Report Page 7 of 7
11



Item 2: TelAlaska Tower CUP (Res. 2022-02) 01.20.2022

City of Unalaska, Alaska
Planning Commission/Platting Board
Resolution 2022-02

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO PLACE A CELL TOWER ON A
LOT ZONED HIGH-DENSITY RESIDENTIAL AT LOT 9, CAPE CHEERFUL SUBDIVISION, PLAT
89-11, AIRD

WHEREAS, UCO 8.08 sets forth the procedures and requirements for the subdivision and platting of land and
provides that the Planning Commission/Platting Board shall act as the Platting Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Ounalashka Corporation is the owner of Lot 9, Cape Cheerful Subdivision, Plat 89-11, Aleutian
Islands Recording District (01-10-220); and

WHEREAS, the property is zoned High Density Residential; and
WHEREAS, UCO 88.12.060(D)(4) specifies utility buildings and facilities, including telephone exchanges; and

WHEREAS, TelAlaska, Inc. desires to lease a portion of the lot to place a cellular phone tower and support
buildings; and

WHEREAS, the landowner and TelAlaska, Inc. have submitted a conditional use permit application to allow a
cellular phone tower; and

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Department of Planning staff has reviewed the request; and
WHEREAS, improving telephone and Internet service is a goal of the Unalaska Comprehensive Plan 2020; and

WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Planning Commission held a public hearing on January 20, 2022 to consider this
this request and to hear testimony of the public; and

WHEREAS, notices of the public hearing were posted and mailed; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the application and finds that this conditional use request satisfies
the three part test set forth in UCO §8.12.200(C):
1. Furthers the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Development Plan;
2. Will be compatible with existing and planned land uses in the surrounding neighborhood and with the intent
of its use district; and
3. Will not have a permanent negative impact substantially greater than anticipated from permitted
development within the district.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission approves the conditional use permit for a
cellular phone tower on Lot 9, Cape Cheerful Subdivision, Plat 89-11, filed in the Aleutian Islands Recording
District.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF , 2022, BY THE PLANNING
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA.

Travis Swangel William Homka, AICP, Planning Director
Commission Chair Secretary of the Commission



Item 2: TelAlaska Tower CUP (Res. 2022-02)

01.20.2022

City of Unalaska, Alaska
Planning Commission/Platting Board
Staff Report

RESOLUTION 2022-02: A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO PLACE A
CELL TOWER ON A LOT ZONED HIGH-DENSITY RESIDENTIAL AT LOT 9, CAPE CHEERFUL
SUBDIVISION, PLAT 89-11, AIRD

Basic Information

Application Type

Conditional Use Permit

Land Owner(s) Ounalashka Corporation

Applicant TelAlaska, Inc.

Proposed Use Cellular Phone Tower

Exhibits Draft Resolution 2022-02, Conditional Use Permit Application, Supplemental Materials,

Location Map

Staff Recommendation

Approval of Resolution 2022-02

Legal Information

Tax Parcel ID

01-10-220

Address

Approximately 290 Eagle Drive, Unalaska, Alaska 99685

Legal Description

Lot 9, Cape Cheerful Subdivision, Plat 89-11, AIRD

Land Use Subarea

Standard Oil Hill

Area Description

North General Commercial and Residential
South Residential
East Public/Quasi-Public
West General Commercial
Current Site Description and Zoning Standards
Zone High Density Residential (HDR) (UCO §8.12.060)
Existing Use Undeveloped
Permitted Uses 1)  Any number or combination of residential dwelling units
2)  Not more than four mobile homes on one lot
3) Day-care for five or less children
4) Home occupations
5) Commercial greenhouses
6) Outdoor storage of subsistence and noncommercial fishing gear, boats, nets, buoys and related
equipment
7) Public recreational areas, parks, playgrounds, hiking trails
Conditional Uses 1) Schools
2) Churches
3) Day-care for more than five children
4) Public and quasi-public buildings essential to the physical and economic welfare of the area, such as
utility buildings and facilities, fire stations, electric substations, water treatment plants, telephone
exchanges, and similar uses or public services
5) Mobile home parks
6) Professional offices, including professional offices in a residence
7) Hospitals, clinics, homes for the aged, group homes, nursing homes, and convalescent homes
8) Halfway houses and safe houses
9) Marinas

10) Bed and breakfasts, lodging houses, and boarding houses
11) Hotels and motels, including bars, restaurants, and other tourist facilities

Existing Required Existing Required
Lot Area 57,523 ft? >10,000 ft? Front Setback 20 ft
Lot Frontage 110 ft >60 ft Side Setbacks 10 ft

1
13



Item 2: TelAlaska Tower CUP (Res. 2022-02) 01.20.2022

Coverage 0% <50 % Rear Setback 20 ft
Building Height 0 ft <50 ft Parking 2 spots
Corner Lot? No Nonconformance? No

Parcel History

Planning Commission N/A
Resolution

City Council Ordinance N/A

ADDITIONAL CODE REQUIREMENTS
N/A

PLAN GUIDANCE

1. The Overall Quality of Life section of the Comprehensive Plan identifies improving and lowing the cost of
Internet, cable and phone service as a goal. The Plan specifically identifies the construction of new cell tower
sites as a primary action to improve quality of life.

BACKGROUND

1. Lot 9 is on the north side of a 100’ hill with cliffs to the west and north. The topography would make
constructing a large building on the site expensive and challenging.

2. There is plenty of parking on the lot for service vehicles.

DETAILED FINDINGS
1. The proposed structure would meet all setback requirements for the zone.
2. High Density Residential lots have a maximum building height of 50°. The proposed tower is 40°.
3. Utility buildings and facilities, including “telephone exchanges,” are identified in City Code as appropriate
conditional uses in High Density Residential districts (§8.12.060(D)(4)).
4. Furthers the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan:
e Construction of new cell tower sites is identified as a primary action to improve quality of life in the
2020 Comprehensive Plan.
5. Will be compatible with existing and planned land uses in the surrounding neighborhood and with the intent of
its use district:
e A cell tower would support growing community needs and improve reliability of communications for
all residents.
o Historically, Unalaska has allowed small cell towers near residential structures. The proposed tower
would be approximately as close to existing residences as the towers on Haystack.
6. Will not have a permanent negative impact substantially greater than anticipated from permitted development
within the district:
e The tower would cause limited traffic on Driftwood Way compared to a new residential development
and is not expected to cause excessive noise or other disturbances.

CONDITIONS
1. N/A

RECOMMENDATION

In accordance with the standards outlined in Unalaska City Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.12 (Zoning), the City of
Unalaska Department of Planning recommends approval of this conditional use request identified in Resolution
2022-02.

I



SHIN,D*RI.

[ Parcels [ | Applicant Parcel

A

0 125 250 500 Feet

I N NN AN N R R R

Maps and associated information have been created or
purchased by the City of Unalaska and were compiled from
the most authentic data available. The City is not
responsible for any errors or omissions contained hereon.
All data and materials Copyright © 2022. All Rights
Reserved.




PLANNING REQUEST APPLICATION FORM
CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA

Department of Planning

PO Box 610

Unalaska, Alaska 99685-0610

Phone: (907) 581 3100 FAX (907) 581 4181
Email: planning@ci.unalaska.ak.us
Website: www.ci.unalaska.ak.us

The undersigned hereby applies to the City of Unalaska for approval of the following as per Title 8: Planning and Land Use Development,
uco.

APPLICATION FOR: O VARIANCE @ CONDITIONAL USE
ZONE AMENDMENT O PLAT

Brief Description of Request: (attach additional information to communicate request)

Use of Lot 9, Cape Cheerful as a Cell Tower Site. Lot 9 is within 500 of a residential zoned district.

High Density Residential 5 units plus
Current Zone Designation: Proposed Zone Designation(s) (if applicable):

Empty Cell Tower Site

Proposed Land Use(s) (if changing):

Current Land Use(s):

Ounalashka Corporation

PO Box 149, Unalaska, AK 99685
Not Currently Addressed

Property Owner:

Property Owner Address:

Street Address of Property:

Applicant's Name: TeIAIaSka, I nc
201 E 56th Ave

Mailing Address:

Email: Day Time Phone: Message Phone:
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY DATE

Preliminary Plat Copies Attachment A

Applicant Letter Site Plan

Application Fee Title Search/Certificate-to-Plat



mailto:planning@ci.unalaska.ak.us

PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION: (Fill in applicable blanks)

0110220 .9

Tax Lot ID No.: Block: Tract:
subdivision: caPp€ Cheeful USs:
Section(s):3 Township: 73S Range: 118W

PROPOSED FUTURE DESIGNATION OF PROPERTY: (For Plat Application Only)

Platting Procedures and Requirements are described in detail in Chapter 8.08: Platting and Subdivision. A certificate to
plat as proof of ownership shall accompany the submittal of a plat.

SUBDIVISION
Block(s) Lot (s) Tract (s) USss
Containing: Acre(s) Lot(s) Tract(s)

SURVEYOR INFORMATION

Surveyor Name :

Firm Name

Address

Contact Details : Email Phone Number

Registered in Alaska: Yeso No O

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (For Variance, Zone Amendment and Conditional Use Application Only).

Subdivision Variance (8.08.110)
Applicant is encouraged to submit supporting documentation and a site plan to demonstrate how the requested Variance:

e Is needed due to special circumstances or conditions affecting the proposed subdivision such that strict application of
the provisions of this chapter would clearly be impractical or undesirable to the general public or that strict application
would be unreasonable or cause undue hardship to the applicant requesting the variance.

e Will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other property in the area in which the proposed
subdivision is located;

e Wil be in accord with the intent and purpose of this chapter and of the Comprehensive Plan of the city.

Zone Amendment (8.12.190)
Applicant is encouraged to submit supporting documentation to demonstrate how the requested Zone Amendment is
reasonable, in the public interest, and in conformance with the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan.



Conditional Use (8.12.200)
Applicant is encouraged to submit supporting documentation and a site plan to demonstrate how the requested Conditional
Use:
e  Furthers the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Development Plan;
e Will be compatible with existing and planned land uses in the surrounding neighborhood and with the intent of its use
district; and
e Will not have a permanent negative impact substantially greater than anticipated from permitted development within
the district.

Zoning Variance (8.12.210)
Applicant is encouraged to submit supporting documentation and a site plan to demonstrate how the requested Variance:

e Need is not caused by the person seeking the variance and that exceptional or extraordinary circumstances apply to
the property which do not apply generally to other properties in the same zoning district, and result from lot size,
shape, topography, or other circumstances over which the applicant has no control. An argument of “financial
hardship” when defined as causing a developer to spend more than he is willing to in order to conform, is not an over-
riding factor in the granting of a variance;

e Is necessary for the preservation of a property right of the applicant substantially the same as is possessed by other
landowners in the same zoning district;

e  Will not materially affect the health or safety of persons residing or working in the neighborhood and will not be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood; and

e  Will not be materially detrimental to the intent of this chapter, or to properties in the same zoning district in which the
property is located, or otherwise conflict with the objectives of the Comprehensive Plan and the variance requested is
the minimum variance, which would alleviate the hardship.

*SITE PLAN (TO SCALE): Please show all existing and proposed structures, access, dimensions, utilities and parking as
appropriate.

PLEASE NOTE : All applications must be received fifteen (15) days prior to the next regular meeting of the Planning Commission as per
Section 8.12.200(A)(2), Section 8.12.210(B)(2) UCO, and Section 8.12.190 UCO. The Department of Planning will provide an examination of
the City of Unalaska Real Property Tax Roll indicating that the signature of the landowner on the application form is in fact the latest owner
of record. The Department of Planning will mail a notice of the public hearing to all landowners of record within 300 feet of the proposed
request as shown in the City of Unalaska Real Property Tax Rolls.

CERTIFICATION:

| hereby certify that (I Am) (I have been authorized to act for*) the owner of the property described above and that | desire a
planning action for this property in conformance with the Title 8, UCO and hereby dispose and say that all of the above
statements are true. | am familiar with the code requirements and certify, to the best of my knowledge, belief, and
professional ability, that this application meets them. | understand that payment of the review fee is non-refundable and is to
cover costs associated with the processing of this application and that it does not assure approval of the request.

December 29, 2021

Signature Date

*Please fill out and submit Authorization to Make Application by Agent form if acting as Owner’s Agent



Attachment B

GRAVEL SURFACE — ACCESS DRIVEWAY

1N
\\ ‘\\
\ Nl
\ !
| |
‘ |
NEW 5" SECURITY FENCE \‘ ‘!‘
| i
SUPPORT BUILDINGS // /
WIC (WALK IN CABINET) & e
DIESEL GENERATOR HUT
FREE STANDING /
ELEVATED ICE BRIDGE 5
POWER AND COMM CABLES = ¥ -
) BETWEEN TOWER AND HUTS
1 PROPOSED NEW
40’ ROHN LATTICE TOWER
SELF SUPPORTING
WITH 3 HELICAL PILE FOUNDATION
ki)
< Nea
\ %
TELALASKA, INC, v o LOCATION
) SCALE: 17 = 25
201 E 56TH AVE. ¢ CITY OF UNALASKA SECTION: 34
ANCHORAGE AK 99518 SHEET: 1 OF 1 TOWNSHIP: 72 SOUTH
- RANGE: 117 WEST
ggNébAXSHwﬁAg CORPORATION Proposed Cell Site SEWARD MERIDIAN, AK
UNALASKA, AK 99685 Lease Area UNALASKA, ALASKA
10
LI




Attachment B

T A

TELALASKA, INC.

201 E 56TH AVE. SCALES 17 = 29 CITY OF UNALASKA
ANCHORAGE AK 99518 SHEET: 1 OF 1
PO Box 14y CORPORATION Proposed Cell Site

UNALASKA, AK 99685

Lease Area

LOCATION

SECTION: 34
TOWNSHIP: 72 SOUTH
RANGE: 117 WEST
SEWARD MERIDIAN, AK

UNALASKA, ALASKA




MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor and City Council Members

From: Cameron Dean, Acting Planning Director

Through: Erin Reinders, City Manager

Date: January 11, 2022

Re: First Draft of FY23-32 Capital and Major Maintenance Plan (CMMP)

SUMMARY: City Council reviews the Capital and Major Maintenance Plan (CMMP) every year.
This is the first draft of the FY23-32 CMMP.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council reviews drafts of the CMMP each year in January and
March. In April 2021 Council approved the most recent FY22-31 CMMP, the first spanning ten
years instead of five. No formal action is taken at this time.

BACKGROUND: Beginning in October, Planning worked with each department to update their
capital projects. In response to City Council feedback, this year Staff revised the CMMP to
minimize expenditures from the General Fund, particularly over the next several years. To that
end, any General Fund projects that have not already commenced have been rescheduled to
later years, employing the category rankings agreed upon by Council on November 9, 2021
(Resolution 2021-71) to prioritize them.

The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), consisting of the City Manager, Finance Director,
Public Works Director and the Planning Director, met on December 9, 2021 to review 11 projects
submitted for funding in FY23. Department directors reviewed the TAC’s comments on December
22,2021.

This is not the final CMMP, but it is intended to provide Council the opportunity to view and
comment on the work thus far. Comments and concerns will either be incorporated into the CMMP
or discussed among the departments and administration to determine the best course of action.
A second draft will be presented to Council in March. The final CMMP document will be presented
for review and approval in April.

DISCUSSION: Last year, Council reviewed and approved the FY22-31 CMMP, with 69 projects
and a total portfolio of $231,255,491 over ten years. The first year of the CMMP is the most
important because the financial figure represents what is approved to be budgeted. City Council
approved $41,898,546 to fund FY22 projects.

The FY23-32 Draft CMMP presented for your review and comment proposes 53 projects,
including the Rolling Stock Replacement Plan and Facilities Maintenance Plan, at a cost of
$184,790,197 over the next ten years. The FY23 portion of the Draft CMMP proposes 11 projects
for a total cost of $30,095,019, with $4,893,275 coming from the General Fund and $15,983,500
from grants and other external funding. Staff proposes using the 1% Fund to offset some of what
would otherwise be General Fund expenditures in FY23 by covering the remaining $2,860,000
commitment for the Makushin Geothermal Project and $1,000,000 for the Entrance Channel
Dredging. After FY23, Staff proposes allowing the 1% Fund to grow until FY28, when it is expected
to be sufficient to pay for the construction of the new Police Station at $22,090,000.

-1 -

21



Projects proposed for FY23 are focused on maintaining our current infrastructure and continuing
currently funded projects. All three projects drawing from the General Fund or 1% Fund received
funding in FY22 and are currently underway. The largest FY23 projects, the two dredging projects
and Makushin Geothermal, are associated with City Council priorities. Additionally, both Makushin
Geothermal and Entrance Channel Dredging will receive external funding, from OCCP and the
Army Corps of Engineers respectively. External funding comprises 53% of the total FY23
requests.

Significant changes from the previous CMMP are as follows:

Makushin Geothermal Project: Multiple Electric projects, like the energy storage system, SCADA
upgrades and submarine cable, have been removed. Where appropriate, they have been
incorporated into this project, which represents all the reliability upgrades for the City electrical
distribution system required to accept energy from the Makushin Geothermal Plant. The energy
storage system is now being worked into the plant itself. Staff is not requesting any additional
funding beyond what was planned in last year's CMMP, but OCCP’s contribution of $5,000,000
spread over FY23 and FY24 is now included. This is consistent with the current PPA as well as
the associated amendments and MOA. However, OCCP has recently notified us that they may
be requesting an amendment to the PPA, which if granted, would impact the contribution
schedule. We will learn more later this month after meeting with OCCP.

Police Station: Construction for the new DPS station and fire station renovations have been
delayed to FY28-29 with engineering in FY26.

Captains Bay Road: The Cost Benefit Analysis for Captains Bay Road is still in progress. Staff
expects to revise the funding and phasing plan once it is complete later this month. For now, this
project should be considered a placeholder.

Facilities Maintenance Plan: Staff is reviewing the criteria for including maintenance in the
Facilities Maintenance Plan or other budgets. The numbers reported in the CMMP are based on
the most recent draft, but should be expected to change.

ALTERNATIVES: This memo and presentation are for informational purposes only. Council is
free to express concerns, recommendations or other comments and Staff will work to incorporate
the changes into the CMMP. Staff will present the modified CMMP Draft at the scheduled meeting
in March unless requested earlier.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Council reviews the CMMP each year for an opportunity to have
input and subsequently adopt the CMMP as part of the overall budgeting process. Title 6 of City
Code requires the City Manager to submit a five-year capital improvement plan and budget of the
proposed projects each year in conjunction with the City’s operating budget. Each year, the City
Council adopts the CMMP to help identify needs and set spending priorities for the coming five
year period.

LEGAL: Not applicable.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: No recommendation.

PROPOSED MOTION: No council action required.




CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: The Planning Department continues to do a wonderful job

coordinating the CMMP Process. Staff looks forward to your feedback on this draft as we work to
refine and develop the second draft.

ATTACHMENTS: FY23-32 Draft CMMP Summary Sheets and Budget Tables




Project Description: All Generation and distribution/feeder breakers at the New and Old
Powerhouse and Town Substation will be serviced by a qualified industry service compa-
ny. Breakers will be assessed and serviced. A detailed report indicating condition of the
specific breakers will be provided along with recommended service maintenance intervals
per the relevant industry codes.

Project Need: The City operates two powerhouses and one substation. Each of these
facilities has at least one primary electrical switchgear line-up. Electrical switchgear re-
quire maintenance and cleaning to ensure proper operation. Safe operation of switchgear
reduces risks of arc-flash issues and improves operator safety. In the last five years, there
has been very little major maintenance and testing performed at any of the powerhouses’
or Town Substation’s switchgear line-ups. Only general visual maintenance has been per-
formed, except during the installation of the Unit 12 (CAT C280) project, when a modifica-
tion at the Town Substation was made as part of that project. During the modification, the
Contractor found that one of the substation breakers would not open/close properly. EPC
onsite technicians working with EPC electrical maintenance leads in Anchorage were able
to repair the breaker so that it will function properly. However, no other maintenance has
been performed on this breaker or others. This project is part of the Electrical master
Plan.

Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the Electric Proprietary
Fund.

Cost Assumptions
Engineering, Design, Construction Admin $150,000
Other Professional Services

Construction Services

FY23-32 CMMP

Electrical Breakers Maintenance and Service
Electric

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY27
Engineering/Design: FY27
Purchase/Construction: FY27

Machinery & Equipment $30,000
Subtotal $180,000
Contingency (30%) $54,000
Total Funding Request $234,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Electric Proprietary Fund 0| 234,000 0 0| 234,000
Total 0 0 0 0 0| 234,000 0 0| 234,000




Project Description: This project funds the purchase of ongoing replacement equipment
for the electrical distribution system. It includes electrical switches, section cans, trans-
formers, and cables. Electrical equipment will also be purchased for new customers and

for existing customers who need to upgrade electrical service.

FY23-32 CMMP

Electrical Distribution Equipment Replacement

Electric
Project Need: Ongoing replacement of the distribution system equipment is necessary
to maintain its reliability and protect the assets of the City and ensure the safe distribu-
tion of electricity. This project will correctly capture and capitalize the expenditures made
to keep the system operational as well as in expand the system where necessary. Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: NA
Development Plan & Status : Funding for this project will come from the Electrical Pro- Engineering/Design: NA
prietary Fund retained earnings. Purchase/Construction: NA
FY23 Cost Assumptions
Engineering, Design, Construction Admin
Other Professional Services
Construction Services
Machinery & Equipment $100,000
Subtotal $100,000
Contingency (0%) 0
Total Funding Request $100,000
Source Appropriated | 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Electric Proprietary Fund 115,000 100,000 100,000, 100,000( 100,000( 100,000/ 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000| 1,115,000
Total 115,000 100,000 100,000, 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000{ 100,000 100,000 100,000| 1,115,000

25



Project Description: This project adds protective devices at the major industrial services,
including APL and Horizon and at radial taps in the 35 kV system. Vacuum circuit re-
closers will be installed to properly coordinate clearing times in the event of a system dis-
turbance. This enables the rest of the system to stay on line and only remove the faulted
service or radial feeder. Each location will require one recloser with dedicated relay con-
trol. The recloser will also require provisions for communications back to the NPH via ra-
dio link or fiber optic cable when available. An updated short circuit study and new pro-
tective relay settings will be required in order to properly complete the system coordina-
tion work. Engineering and installation of reclosers at five locations are assumed for this
project.

Project Need: The 35 kV system does not have any intermediate level protective devices
that would minimize power disruptions to customers. The system is only protected from
faults via two main 35 kV re-closers at the powerhouse, two main 35 kV town substation
breakers, Alyeska Seafoods recloser, Westward Seafoods recloser, Captains Bay Road tap
recloser, and four main 12 kV town substation breakers. Other than primary fusing on
customer transformers, the system lacks any coordinated protection scheme. Some under
frequency and under voltage load shed schemes are currently employed in the system but
still are limited in their ability to isolate the system in smaller manageable pieces that
would minimize disturbances to as few customers as possible. The lack of adequate‘coor-
dinated protection schemes and apparatus has caused system wide outages during to.a
fault or disturbance event most often induced by a single large industrial customer.

Development Plan & Status : Areas where intermediate level protection apparatus
should be incorporated are as follows: 1. Ballyhoo Tap 2. APL 3. Horizon 4. Submarine
Crossing 5. Bridge Crossing

Cost Assumptions

Engineering, Design, Construction Admin $50,000
Other Professional Services $75,000
Construction Services $100,000
Machinery & Equipment $275,000

Subtotal $500,000
Contingency (30%) $150,000

Total Funding Request $650,000

FY23-32 CMMP

Electrical Intermediate Level Protection

Installation
Electric

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY26
Engineering/Design: FY27
Purchase/Construction: FY28

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Electric Proprietary
Fund 0| 650,000 0| 650,000
Total 0| 650,000 0| 650,000




Project Description: This project consists of inspection, major maintenance, and rebuilds
of the primary generator sets in the Unalaska Powerhouse. The maintenance schedule for
the generator sets at the Unalaska Powerhouse is determined by engine hours. Engine
inspections are also conducted by the manufacturer's mechanics to determine if engine
rebuilds are needed or if they can be prolonged according to the hourly schedule.

Project Need: These generator set rebuilds are needed to maintain our equipment and
the reliability of our electrical production. Our Certificate of Fitness from the Alaska Ener-
gy Authority states that we must keep all electrical generating equipment in good running
condition.

Development Plan & Status : Due to the high cost of the engine rebuilds, it has been
determined that the cost will be capitalized. Costs for the Generator Sets rebuilds can
fluctuate greatly according to what is determined by the maintenance inspections. Costs
for these rebuilds has been determined by the worst case scenario according to the histo-
ry of the engines. Money that is not used for rebuilds by the end of the fiscal year, will be

returned to the proprietary fund.

Cost Assumptions
Repair & Maintenance $2,115,385 _l
Other Professional Services
Construction Services
Machinery & Equipment

4

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: NA
Engineering/Design: NA
Purchase/Construction: NA

FY23-32 CMMP

Generator Sets Rebuild

Electric

Subtotal $2,115,385
Contingency (30%) $634,615
Total Funding Request $2,750,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Electric Proprietary
Fund 500,000 750,000( 1,000,000{ 500,000 0| 2,750,000
Total 500,000 750,000 1,000,000{ 500,000 0| 2,750,000




Project Description: A qualified industry service company who specializes in in the
maintenance of utility electrical equipment will service all power transformers at the New
Power House and Town Substation. Transformers will be assessed and serviced, as re-
quired. Transformer assessment includes insulation testing, dissolved gas analysis, sweep
frequency response analysis and other tests. After testing is completed, a detailed report
indicating condition and test results would be provided along with recommended service
maintenance intervals per the relevant industry codes. It is also understood that compo-
nents on the transformers are failing due to long term exposure to the corrosive environ-
ment due to the marine atmosphere. This will necessitate a more thorough repair in order
to ensure long term reliability of the power transformers.

Project Need: The City owns four power transformers at the NPH and two at the Town
Substation. Three of the NPH transformers are approximately 13 years old, with the
fourth only 4 years old. The transformers at the Town Substation are original from the
substation construction approximately 20 years ago. While these transformers should
have many more years of service, proper and timely maintenance will help prolong their
lives. Testing transformers over a period of many years also allows a utility to develop a
baseline for each unit, which in turn can identify a developing problem that may not oth-
erwise be discovered until the transformer fails. Replacement of failing monitoring devic-
es is also critical as these are often the utility’s first indication of a problem. The devices
can also operate to quickly deenergize a transformer should a more serious condition
become present. Without operating protective devices, the utility experiences a higher
risk of significant damage if a transformer fails.

Development Plan & Status : Funding for this project will come from the Electric Propri-
etary Fund.

Cost Assumptions
Engineering, Design, Construction Admin
Other Professional Services $150,000
Construction Services
Machinery & Equipment
Subtotal $150,000
Contingency (30%) $45,000
Total Funding Request $195,000

FY23-32 CMMP

Large Transformer Maintenance and Service
Electric

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY24
Engineering/Design: FY24
Purchase/Construction: FY24

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Electric Proprietary
Fund 0] 195,000 0 0 0] 195,000
Total 0| 195,000 0 0 0 0] 195,000




Project Description: This project is the City of Unalaska’s estimated portion of reliability
upgrades for the City electrical distribution system required to accept energy from the
Makushin Geothermal Plant. It requires connecting multiple self-generating industrial
customers to the current distribution system, installs more robust intermediate level pro-
tections, replaces the aging submarine cable at Illiuliuk Bay, upgrades numerous feeder
connections and substations, and improvements to the current SCADA system and auto-
mated controls. Other funds will be set aside for legal and consulting fees associated with
implementing the project.

Project Need: On August 31, 2020, the City entered into a Power Purchase Agreement
(PPA) with OCCP. Section 11, Paragraph (c) of the PPA stipulates the City will be responsi-
ble for half of the next ten million dollars ($5,000,000) after the first two million dollar
cost of reliability upgrades and distribution additions needed to supply energy from the
geothermal plant to Unalaska residents and businesses, and the entirety of the intercon-
nection costs beyond 12 million dollars, if required. This project represents a community
partnership to bring renewable energy to Unalaska.

Development Plan & Status : The budget for this project was estimated from required
funding commitments outlined in the Power Purchase Agreement. A more accurate budg-
et will be determined upon completion of the Intertie Study currently in progress, and
based on Study findings there may be a Phase Il project to accomplish the required up-
grades. Funding for this project will come from the 1% and General funds.

FY23-32 CMMP

Makushin Geothermal Project
Electric

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY22
Engineering/Design: FY22
Purchase/Construction: FY23

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
1% Sales Tax 2,860,000| 2,860,000 0 0 0 0[ 5,720,000
Private Contribution 0| 2,500,000] 2,500,000 0 0 0 0| 5,000,000
Total 2,860,000| 5,360,000 2,500,000 0 0 0 0{ 10,720,000




Project Description: Remodel the existing DPS building after a new DPS building is con-

structed and the Police Department moves to the new facility. FY2 3 = 3 2 C M IVI P
Project Need: Constructed in 1987, the present structure is in need of HVAC, electrical Fire Station Remodel
and architectural upgrades. Due to lack of space, the garage for the fire apparatus also

houses EMS supplies, turnout gear, the air compressor and gym. The cramped arrange-
ment is unsafe and risks contamination from fumes.

Fire

Development Plan & Status : The existing structure will be extensively renovated for use Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
by Fire / EMS. The department will relocate to another facility during the work. Architec- Pre Design: FY26

tural firm JYL produced an initial cost estimate of $8,970,000 dated February 28, 2020. Engineering/Design: FY26
Funding will come from the General Fund. Purchase/Construction: FY29

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0 0| 10,383,896 0 0 0| 10,383,896
Total 0 0 0 0] 10,383,896 0 0 0| 10,383,896




Project Description: Establish a live fire training facility in Unalaska. The structure will
provide residential type response with a burn room, interior stairs leading to multiple
stories, an interior fixed ladder, roof-mounted chop-out curbs, and a parapet roof guard
with chain opening. The facility offers multiple training exercises including hose advance-
ment, fire attack, search & rescue, rappelling, laddering, confined space maneuvers, and
high-angle rescue operations. Currently there are no such facilities for training public or
private sector organizations in Unalaska. This facility will also include a “dirty” classroom
and a “clean” classroom that will allow personnel to stay out of the elements while they
are instructed on the didactic portion of the lesson.

Project Need: Firefighter certification in Alaska requires a live fire training element to
ensure experience fighting fires with significant heat and smoke in limited or zero visibility
environments. Uncertified volunteers or paid firefighters can respond to fires, but live fire
training and certification ensures that they are prepared and don’t panic in real situations.
No live fire facility exists in Unalaska, so firefighters travel off-island for training and certi-
fication at a cost of approximately $30,000 per person. The training takes 10-12 weeks
and volunteers must take time off from their jobs and live away from their families in or-
der to attend. The proposed training facility can be modified for use by the police depart-
ment to practice active shooter or other use-of-force situations, and also be used as a
confined space rescue training facility by other City departments or private industry, and
as a regional training center for other Aleutian communities.

Development Plan & Status : The proposed site is in the valley near the old chlorine
building, or near the current public safety building pending action on the new proposed
police station. $12,000 was previously appropriated for a temporary training structure
made from shipping containers. Cost quote for facility in 2018 dollarsis $350,000 plus
$85,000 shipping. Other costs include running electrical and waterlines to the site and
building construction costs for a total of $1,513,500.

Cost Assumptions
Other Professional Services 325,000
Engineering, Design, Construction Admin 0
Construction Services 439,231
Machinery & Equipment 400,000
Subtotal| 1,164,231

Contingency (30%) 349,269
Total Funding Request| 1,513,500

FY23-32 CMMP

Fire Training Center
Fire

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY19
Engineering/Design: FY23
Purchase/Construction: FY24

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

2028

2029 2030 2031 2032 Total

General Fund 12,000 1,501,500

o

o
o
o

1,513,500

Total 12,000 1,501,500

o

o
o
o

1,513,500




Project Description: Build a citywide communications infrastructure to connect all City

departments, facilities and systems. Currently the Information Systems department net- FY2 3 = 3 2 C M IVI P
works all facilities using outdoor wireless point to point equipment. The technology is

subject to bandwidth limitations, interference, weather, and significant annual mainte- Communications Infrastructure (Citywide)
nance. The GCI fiber optic project presents a rare opportunity to install subsurface con- Other
duit alongside the company's trenching project throughout the island. Every facility could

be interconnected over the next two years installing the City's own underground cable

network while the ground is open. This will result in a significant increase of network qual-

ity (bandwidth, decreased latency, etc.), reliability, and reduced security risks. This infra- Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
structure would also alleviate hours of internal labor costs associated with maintaining Pre Design: FY21

over 100 existing wireless devices throughout Unalaska. The underground network would Engineering/Design: FY22

serve all City departments, as well as SCADA, VolP (phone system), Security Camera Sys- Purchase/Construction: FY23

tems, Disaster Recovery, Email, GIS, and Network Applications (e.g Munis, Sleuth, Rec-
Trac, Cartegraph, Meter Reading Systems, RMS, WatchGuard, etc.).

Project Need: All cities are increasingly reliant on network services that require larger
amounts of bandwidth. Unalaska needs a viable path forward that will serve its growing
demands (e.g. GIS, Security Cameras, Disaster Recovery, etc.), greater reliability (e.g.
SCADA monitoring/control systems), and future scalability (services growth). Most local
governments have had high-speed underground cable networks for decades, but Unalas-
ka has repeatedly missed opportunities to install its own underground, high-speed net-
work. The GCI proposal will trench miles of underground cabling and could be the last
feasible opportunity to install our own network, This project will upgrade city'infrastruc-
ture and provide significant cost savings for installation and future operations.

Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the General Fund. An addi-
tional $105,974 budgeted to the FY17 Fiber Optic Infrastructure-Development Project
from the Water and Wastewater proprietary funds will be.moved to this project.

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 | 2032 | Total
General Fund 947,013| 947,013 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 1,894,026
Wastewater Proprietary
Fund 52,987 0 0 0 52,987
Water Proprietary Fund 52,987 0 0 0 0| 52,987
Total 1,052,987| 947,013 0 0 0| 2,000,000
32



Project Description: Expand the Aquatics Center Mezzanine and Office space to reach

the walls over the loft area in the lobby. The Mezzanine consists of a multi-use open area, FY2 3 - 3 2 C M IVI P
one office, a computer server room and janitors closet. The expansion will create about

500 sqft more usable space for use as offices. A bank of windows will improve natural Aquatics Center Mezzanine and Office Space

light and air circulation in an otherwise very stuffy and hot room. .
Expansion

Project Need: PCR has added a new Coordinator and Head Lifeguard positions in 2020. PCR

The Aquatics Center lacks additional office space and the coordinator currently uses an

office across the street at PCR. The head lifeguard uses the main admissions office down- Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline

stairs during nonoperational hours. Programming has also increased with the new coordi- Pre Design: FY24

nator. The size of our upstairs facility constricts large events such as the Pumpkin Plunge Engineering/Design: FY25

and Youth Swim League's Award Ceremony. They become standing room only with peo- [ Purchase/Construction: FY26

ple filtering down the stairs. Also, many requests for more free weights will take up even

more space in the Mezzanine.

Development Plan & Status : In October 2018 the City Engineer, Information Systems
and Maintenance did a walk through of the Mezzanine and Offices with the Aquatics
Manager. A plan was discussed to achieve expansion. There are no physical obstacles to
this expansion project.

Mezzanine after expansion

Approximately 1,012.5 sqft 34,
— _ g 105"
Cost Assumptions A y 2
Engineering, Design, Construction Admin v 80,000
Other Professional Services
Construction Services 635,385
Machinery & Equipment
Subtotal 715,385
Contingency (30%) 214,616
Total Funding Request 930,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0 80,000 850,000 0 0 0 0 0 0| 930,000
Total 0 0 80,000 850,000 0 0 0 0 0 0| 930,000

33



Project Description: Renovate Burma Road Chapel's kitchen into a commercial kitchen. FY2 3 3 2 C M IVI P

Project Need: PCR hosts numerous events in Burma Road Chapel. A commercial kitchen

would greatly improve the quality and quantity of PCR's programming as well as generate Burma Road Chapel Kitchen Improvement
revenue. The space is frequently rented for patrons to host parties, and a commercial PCR

kitchen would also improve their experience in that space.

Development Plan & Status : Funding for this project will come from the General Fund.

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY24

[ Engineering/Design: FY24

Purchase/Construction: FY24

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0] 150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 150,000
Total 0 0f 150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 150,000




Project Description: New playground equipment is necessary to replace the outdated FY2 3 3 2 C M IVI P

playground equipment in front of the Community Center.

Project Need: The current play structures are too close to the railing that encloses the community Center P|ayground Rep|acement
playground from the parking lot and sidewalk. PCR

Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the General Fund

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY23

Engineering/Design: FY24
[ Purchase/Construction: FY25

Cost Assumptions B
Other Professional Services v 1
Engineering, Design, Construction Admin 50,000
Construction Services 180,769

Machinery & Equipment
Subtotal 230,769
Contingency (30%) 69,231
Total Funding Request 300,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0| 300,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 300,000
Total 0 0| 300,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 300,000




Project Description: Upgrading technology in the Community Center. FY2 3 3 2 C M IVI P

Project Need: Advances in technology offer more ways for Unalaska to be better con-

nected via internet access. The Community Center will become a place where residents Community Center Techno|ogy Upgrades
and visitors will seek to connect to these services. The meeting and exercise spaces need

PCR
upgrades to meet current technology to accommodate the increasing demand. Examples
include: Projectors and display monitors in the conference room and Multipurpose Room
along with substantial audio/visual improvements, building-wide WIFI access and techno-
logical improvements in the Teen Room. Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY25
Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the General Fund. Engineering/Design: FY25
Purchase/Construction: FY26
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 80,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 80,000
Total 0 80,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 80,000

36



Project Description: Replacing the playground at Ounalashka Community Park (Kelty
Field).

Project Need: Playgrounds are designed to last between 20 and 30 years. The Ounalash-
ka Community Park playground was built in 1999 and reaches the end of its lifespan in
FY28. Several structures have started to show age and the black rubber safety tiles now
are easily moved out of place.

Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the General Fund.

FY23-32 CMMP

Community Park Replacement Playground
PCR

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY27
Engineering/Design: FY27
Purchase/Construction: FY28

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0| 500,000 0 0| 500,000
Total 0| 500,000 0 0| 500,000




Project Description: Replacing all the cable machines in the Cybex Room at the Commu-
nity Center.

Project Need: The equipment in the Cybex Room at the Community Center is as old as
the building and is starting to show it's age. In many cases, the vendor no longer carries

FY23-32 CMMP

Cybex Room Replacement

PCR
replacement parts. When something breaks the maintenance department frequently has
to fabricate parts from scratch to make the machine usable.
Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the General Fund. Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY24
Engineering/Design: FY24
Purchase/Construction: FY24
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0 75,000 0 0 0 75,000
Total 0 75,000 0 0 0 75,000




Project Description: With the new park at UCSD, Tutiakoff Park could be an ideal place
for a dog park. Many community members already bring their dogs to the park for recrea- FY2 3 = 3 2 C IVI M P
tion, so including some obstacles for dogs to play and jump on would greatly benefit dog

owners. Dog Park

PCR
Project Need: There is no dog park on the island and PCR frequently receives requests

from the public to build one.

Development Plan & Status : The park will be designed in FY25, with construction in Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
FY26. Pre Design: FY25
Engineering/Design: FY25
Purchase/Construction: FY26

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0 0 0| 200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0| 200,000
Total 0 0 0 0] 200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0| 200,000

39



Project Description: The gymnasium floor was installed when the building was built in
1996 and is lined for a full size basketball court, volleyball court and badminton court. A
replacement floor would include lines for the same sports. The new floor would be made
of a synthetic material so it would no longer need to be protected during special events.

Project Need: The current wooden floor recoated once a year to improve it's appearance
and remove scratches. Over the past 20 years scratches have become more significant
and the floor is beginning to show its age. A replacement floor will provide a better expe-
rience for patrons and greatly improve staff's ability to deliver quality programming. Spe-
cial events held in the gym require PCR staff to roll out tarps to protect the wood floor.
Afterward, they need to be cleaned and mopped which requires significant staff time. The
planned replacement floor can be mopped and cared for much like the Multipurpose
Room floor.

Development Plan & Status : During FY24 PCR staff will identify the flooring material

that best meets the needs for the community. The estimated coast is $221,000 which
means that $51,000 or 10% is planned to be spent in FY24 for design and scoping.

Cost Assumptions ‘|
Engineering, Design, Const Admin 51,000
Other Professional Services
Construction Services 158,231
Machinery & Equipment

Subtotal 209,231
Contingency (set at 30%) 62,769

TOTAL 272,000

FY23-32 CMMP

Gymnasium Floor
PCR

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY24
Engineering/Design: FY24
Purchase/Construction: FY25

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0 51,000 221,000 0 0 0 0| 272,000
Total 0 0 51,000 221,000 0 0 0 0 272,000




Project Description: Providing access to Community Park from the southwest side. FY2 3 3 2 C IVI M P

Project Need: Many children in the neighborhood adjacent to the south side of Kelty
Field cross the stream to access the park. This project would create walking access to the Kelty Field SW Access
park in the southwest side to allow these children to safely cross the stream and gain ac-

PCR
cess to the park.
Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the General Fund.
Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY28
Engineering/Design: FY28
Purchase/Construction: FY29
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0 0 0 0| 500,000 0 0 0| 500,000
Total 0 0 0 0 0| 500,000 0 0 0] 500,000




Project Description: Turning the area in the Aquatic Center where the slide is into a Kid-
die Pool/Splash Pad.

Project Need: The waterslide is the Aquatic Center's only attraction. It is not used often

FY23-32 CMMP

Kiddie Pool/Splash Pad

because it requires extra staffing and three swimming lanes are closed when running. PCR
Patrons are limited to one at a time and lifejackets are not allowed. If a child cannot reach
the bottom of the pool where the slide comes out or they cannot swim to the side they
are not able to use the slide. A kiddie pool with fountains and smaller slides will run con-
tinuously during open hours and with no additional staffing. Children who are not able to Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
swim will be able to use this facility as a safe introduction to water. It will also be useable Pre Design: FY29
on its own. Multiple kids can use it simultaneously, and the new improvements can fit in Engineering/Design: FY29
the same space where the slide will be removed. Purchase/Construction: FY30
Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the General Fund.
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0| 500,000 0 0| 500,000
Total 0| 500,000 0 0| 500,000




Project Description: Ounalashka Community Park was built in 1999 and is located in
Unalaska Walley. It is the department's largest park and includes a softball field, outdoor
basketball/tennis court, and a paved trail with some permanent exercise stations. In addi-
tion to the athletic equipment, it also has a playground, pavilion, and a snack shack which
is occasionally used during PCR events. This project would build a covered multipurpose

FY23-32 CMMP

Multipurpose Facility

PCR
facility where the current tennis court is or somewhere close to it.
Project Need: In 2012, the court was resurfaced with plastic tiles in the hopes that they
would be an improvement over the worn out court. However, they do not offer a realistic Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
tennis surface and the court measures two feet too short. This project will: Pre Design: FY25
e Improve the quality of the park's amenities. Engineering/Design: FY26
e Evaluate the current and future facility in an effort to best accommodate Unalaska Purchase/Construction: FY27
residents for the next 20 to 30 years.
e Provide a multipurpose covered facility, that can serve as an emergency shelterfor 4 e —————————r—rr————
. . - : NS
the island outside the tsunami inundation zone.
I T T
Development Plan & Status : PCR staff and the Advisory Board will gauge public interest
in bringing a covered facility with two regulation tennis courts. The estimated cost is |
$5,629,000. $562,000 or 10% will be spent in FY26 for design and scoping. These numbers
came from Lose Design. There is grant funding available for emergency related services T T
and the City will also seek a partnership with other island organizations to pursue availa-
ble resources.
o i
3 L
o o
TG 2on el N
Subtotal 4,330,000
Contingency (set at 30%) 1,299,000
TOTAL 5,629,000
Less Other Funding Sources (Grants, etc.)
Total Funding Request$ 5,629,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0] 562,900| 5,066,100 0| 5,629,000
Total 0 0] 562,900| 5,066,100 0| 5,629,000

43



Project Description: Creating a city park in the area above Westward Plant. This area of

the community currently lacks any recreational amenities.

Project Need: Park development on west/southwest area of the city above Westward.

The road system and utilities are already in place reducing the costs of construction. It is a

FY23-32 CMMP

Park Above the Westward Plant

PCR
natural place of a park serving an under-developed area of the city.
Development Plan & Status : Funding for this project would come from the General
Fund. Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY29
Engineering/Design: FY29
Purchase/Construction: FY30
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0| 3,200,000 0 0| 3,200,000
Total 0| 3,200,000 0 0| 3,200,000




Project Description: Develop a comprehensive parks and recreation plan. We will hire an
outside consulting firm to help us better assess the needs of our department for the next FY2 3 = 3 2 C M IVI P
ten years and beyond.

Parks and Recreation Study

Project Need: PCR's management team has spent a significant amount of time during

the past several years developing a plan for future CMMP projects. Bringing in a consult- PCR
ant could help not only with prioritizing those projects, but also with programming, daily
operations, and park maintenance.
Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Development Plan & Status : Funding will come from the General Fund. Studies do not Pre Design: FY24
require a contingency. Engineering/Design: FY24
Purchase/Construction: FY24
Cost Assumptions
Other Professional Services $100,000
Engineering, Design, Construction Admin
Construction Services
Machinery & Equipment
Subtotal $100,000
Contingency (0%) SO
Total Funding Request $100,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0| 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0] 100,000
Total 0 0] 100,000 0 0 0 0] 100,000




Project Description: Expanding the pool towards the road in order to provide space for
bleachers.

Project Need: Four years ago PCR purchased a Colorado Timing System so the Aquatic
Center can accommodate larger swim meets. However, the size of our Natatorium is
barely able to hold two swim teams as well as spectators comfortably. This project will
expand the Aquatic Center on the south side to allow for bleachers for both spectators
and teams and expand on the east side to install a small warm-up cool-down, 2 lane, 15
yard, 3 foot deep pool. This will make our pool competition ready and even open up the

possibilities to having Regionals.

Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the General Fund.

FY23-32 CMMP

Pool Expansion
PCR

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY29
Engineering/Design: FY29
Purchase/Construction: FY30

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0 0] 2,000,000 0 0/ 2,000,000
Total 0 0 0{ 2,000,000 0 0{ 2,000,000




Project Description: Installing a pump track next to Kelty Field.

Project Need: The current Skate Park is old and needs to be replaced. It has had many
different paint jobs and rust has made certain areas dangerous. The current location of
the Skate Park sits on real estate that can better serve the community, and discussions
about various new facilities mention repurposing this property. If the site is designated for
a new use, then the City needs to find a new location for wheeled recreation. Adding a
pump track to Community Park would greatly increase what that park can offer and its
use.

Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the General Fund.

FY23-32 CMMP

Pump Track
PCR

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY24
Engineering/Design: FY24
Purchase/Construction: FY25

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0 0[ 100,000 0 0 0/ 100,000
Total 0 0 0| 100,000 0 0 0 0] 100,000




Project Description: Repairing and replacing the rebar that has rusted through the
bottom of the pool, then replacing the plaster. FY2 3 = 3 2 C M IVI P

Project Need: A pool should be re-plastered every 10 years and even sooner with a salt Rebar Restoration and Re-p|astering
water pool. Our pool has had the same plaster on it for over 20 years. Due to the life of

PCR
our current plaster and Gunite corrosion the rebar underneath has become corroded and
needs restoration.
Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the General Fund. Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY25
Engineering/Design: FY25
Purchase/Construction: FY26
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0| 250,000 0 0 0 0 0 0] 250,000
Total 0| 250,000 0 0 0 0 0 0] 250,000

48



Project Description: Repurpose the existing warming pool into a spa. FY2 3 3 2 C M IVI P

Project Need: The warming pool at the Aquatic Center currently has a jet system and
filters that go through our filtration system. We could easily build a wall between the jets Spa
and the entrance of the pool to create an overfill spa. The only additions that would be

PCR
required is a wall and a separate heating unit. This would provide heated hydrotherapy to
our community members who need it.
Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the General Fund. Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY29
Engineering/Design: FY29
Purchase/Construction: FY30
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0| 200,000 0 0| 200,000
Total 0 0] 200,000 0 0] 200,000




Project Description: In 2018 the Planning Department completed a study of the city's
transportation and determined there is a need for public transit. The island population of
about 4,000 residents increases to 11,000 during processing seasons. The study conduct-
ed two bus operation periods to simulate a transit system, surveys were available in mul-
tiple languages and the results indicated a high probability of ridership. This project seeks
funding for a second study by professional transportation planners and engineers to con-
duct a more thorough analysis of how a public transportation system in Unalaska, funding
sources, service areas and routes and capital equipment needed for the system.

Project Need: A large percentage of island residents and workers lack reliable and
affordable transportation. Unalaska's harsh weather further hampers specific populations
that would use the system including the elderly, youth, and processors, and the high cost
of vehicle ownership and maintenance on the island is another consideration. The 2018
Transportation Study identified several transportation grants that could fund up to 80% of
the cost annually. The project should also explore partnerships with the Q-Tribe, OC, and
private island corporations to leverage investment and grant opportunities. Furthermore,
the project will evaluate whether the system should be operated by a Transit Authority, a
one of the major investors, city, tribal department, or otherwise.

Development Plan & Status : The FY25 expenditure is $200,000 from the General Fund:
Studies do not require a contingency budget. Based on the study, the expectation is to
identify grants available to further lower the cost, potentially up to 80% with the correct
partners taking the wheel.

Cost Assumptions
Other Professional Services $200,000
Engineering, Design, Construction Admin
Construction Services
Machinery & Equipment
Subtotal $200,000

Contingency (30%) SO

Total Funding Request $200,000

FY23-32 CMMP

Unalaska Public Transportation Study

Planning

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY25
Engineering/Design: NA
Purchase/Construction: NA

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0 0| 200,000 0 0 0 0 0f 200,000
Total 0 0 0| 200,000 0 0 0 0 0f 200,000




Project Description: This project will remove material from the channel bar that crosses
the entrance of lliuliuk Bay before vessels can enter Dutch Harbor. The dredging will in-
crease the depth of water to accommodate the draft of large vessels transiting the chan-
nel and utilizing the Unalaska Marine Center and facilities inside of Dutch Harbor. The City
will work with the US Army Corps of Engineers to help fund, design, construct, and main-
tain this project. This project already completed the biological assessments to gauge the
impact of dredging to beachfronts inside of the harbor. The USACE has secured a congres-
sional authorization to fund the dredging. This will allow deeper draft vessels to enter into
Dutch Harbor including tankers, container ships and break-bulk vessels. The project will
reduce delays of current vessels entering and departing the harbor due to storm surge
and swell in the channel. The project estimates removal of 23,400 CY of material.

Project Need: The bar that crosses the entrance channel limits vessels entering the port
by their draft rather than need for services in the community. Many vessels passing the
community cannot enter our port due to water depth. Depending upon sea conditions the
keel depth for vessels currently utilizing the port can be as little as one meter to the
bottom according to the Alaska Marine Pilots. Storm conditions, especially northerly wind,
undulates the sea height and makes the situation worse by causing vessels to pitch re-
sulting in contact with the sea floor where the bar is located. Dredging the entrance chan-
nel to a sufficient depth and width will alleviate the safety concerns and allow more‘ves-
sel/cargo traffic into the port, increasing Unalaska's economic utility.

Development Plan & Status : The City conducted a Cost Benefit Analysis.of the project to
prove its benefit to the nation and that it is worthy of the USACE's and.@xpenses. This
project moved steadily forward to assimilate other key pieces, such.as the biological as-
sessment, impacts of dredging, and any impacts dredging may have on the inner harbor.
In 2020 the US Congress authorized funding to the project with.JSACE and made availa-
ble $27M. The City needs a match of just $9M, bringing the'total cost to $38.456M. It will

4

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline

Purchase/Construction: FY22-23

Survyed By NOAA Ship | srweather
Sl & 290 2011
North Copst 0 Yraianis inland AX

Subject %0 Office Review

FY23-32 CMMP

Entrance Channel Dredging

Pre Design: FY19
Engineering/Design: FY20

Ports

be completed in phases over FY22 and FY23. s 18 = 17 7% \ ||
- chice- ([ /7 78RR fanasnoy
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
1% Sales Tax 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 2,000,000
General Fund 5,994,500 3,494,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 9,489,000
Grant 13,483,500| 13,483,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 26,967,000
Total 20,478,000| 17,978,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 38,456,000




Project Description: Construct a new, state of the art Public Safety facility on the Skate Park site
between the Clinic and City Hall.

Project Need: Presently, the Department of Public Safety (DPS) structure is outdated and presents

safety and operational issues. It does not support all the needs of the department. Issues include:

e Inadequate staff support, office, interview and observation space; and no locker rooms for
uniform changes, post-exposure decontamination, etc.

e  Building access restrictions required for Police operations constrain volunteer firefighter use.

e  Detainee entrance is a narrow passage to parking area that conflicts with emergency response.
The undersized booking area is potentially hazardous for staff with unruly prisoners. The re-
mote evidence drop-off/storage raises chain of custody and security issues.

e  Crowded dispatch area provides little security from the public lobby, creating a safety and con-
fidentiality issue.

e  The fire apparatus garage houses EMS supplies, turnout gear, air compressor and gym. This
creates potential contamination hazards from fumes.

Development Plan & Status : Architectural firm, Jensen Yorba Lott (JYL), was retained to conduct a

functional assessment of the existing DPS facility with the following goals and objectives:

e  Analyze comprehensive space needs for current/future program requirements

e |dentify short-comings of the existing facility to meet those requirements

®  Analyze building for building codes, conditions, and expansion opportunities

e  Provide schematics for building expansion or new const that meets DPS program requirements
and will serve the City of Unalaska for the next 50 years

e |dentify potential sites suitable for consideration for a new DPS complex

Based on Council input and budget amendment, pre-design scope increased to bring new proposed

Police Station and renovation of the existing building to a high level pre-design including geotech,

schematic drawings, and cost estimates. Results of pre-design will support fulldesign.andconstruc-

tion.

Discovery Drilling finished last boring 9-3-19 bringing total drilleddength to 500'. Preliminary find-

FY23-32 CMMP

Police Station

Public Safety

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline

Pre Design: FY20

Engineering/Design: FY21
Purchase/Construction: FY23

RAVEN WAY

LAVELLE COURT

ings show fill on top of geotextile fabric underlain with soft lakebed material. Bedrock was found ’Cost Assumptions
between 11.5’ deep near Airport Beach Road and 49.5’ deep on the opposite (north) side of the - -
Skate Park. The Final Geotech Report for the Skate Park site was received on 12-23-19. Corey Wall Other Professional Services 278,250
with JYW (formerly JYL) presented findings to Council via teleconferenceiduring the July 14, 2020 Engineering, Design, Construction Admin 3,000,000
Council meeting wherein Council requested additional sites be evaluated. Construction Services 20.309 250
DPS Director King and DPW Director Cohenour evaluated 4 additional sites. Corey Wall reviewed Machinery & Equipment 1,502,500
findings at November 10, 2020 Council meeting and DPW Director lead discussion on 4 additional Subtotal 25,090,000
sites with input from Director King. No further direction from Council has been given. Contingency (included in Architect's estimate)
Total Funding Request 25,090,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
1% Sales Tax 0 0 0 0 0| 22,090,000 0 0 0 0| 22,090,000
General Fund 0 0| 3,000,000 0 0 0 0 0 0| 3,000,000
Total 0 0| 3,000,000 0| 22,090,000 0 0 0 0| 25,090,000

52



Project Description: In 2019 the PCR side of the Burma Road Chapel showed signs of
rotten siding along the lower portions of the exterior wall. Architect Corey Wall, JYL Archi-
tects, crawled under the structure and took photos of the rim joists. Evidence of rot was
observed below the building. The original scope of this project included removing shin-
gles, roof boards, and damaged insulation, and installing framing for eave soffit ventila-
tion/increased depth for insulation, insulation to R-30, new roof boards, re-roofing the
building, and painting the new eaves and trim. Additional roof repairs will be required in
the future. An imminent need is the repair of the rotten sill plate, rim joists, and exterior
siding on the PCR side of the Burma Rd Chapel.

Project Need: Exterior siding, structural sill plates and rim joists all show signs of rot and
need replacement. Also, the facility lacks proper insulation and ventilation, which causes
snow melt on the roof that runs down to the eave, freezes and causes ice dams to sepa-
rate the walls and roof. As ice dams grow larger, the water from the melting snows backs
up and leaks between wood shingles into the building causing water damage. In FY0S,
metal flashing was installed on the eaves over the electric cable system to heat the flash-
ing. A new roof will protect the facility for at least another 30 years.

Development Plan & Status: DPW!'s Facilities Maintenance budget will replace the met-
al flashing and heat trace on the eave as an interim solution when the present system
fails. The rotten siding along the lower portions of the exterior wall and sill plate repair
work began in November 2020 and will be completed by the end of FY21. The major roof
repairs will be conducted in FY24.

Cost Assumptions A
Engineering, Design, Const Admin 70,000 |
Other Professional Services 10,000
Construction Services 373,077

Machinery & Equipment -
Subtotal 453,077

FY23-32 CMMP

Burma Road Chapel Upgrades
Public Works

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY20
Engineering/Design: FY21
Purchase/Construction: FY24

Contingency (set at 30%) 135,923
TOTAL 589,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 110,000 0| 479,000 0 0 0 0 0 0| 589,000
Total 110,000 0| 479,000 0 0 0 0 0 0| 589,000




Project Description: This major infrastructure improvement project constructs drainage, utilities,
and pavement out Captains Bay Road to the entrance of Offshore Systems, Inc. (OSl). The work FY2 3 - 3 2 C IVI IVI P
spans approximately 2 .5 miles of drainage improvements from Airport Beach Road to OSI, 2.5 miles

of road realignment/paving/walkways/lighting from Airport Beach Road to OSI, and 1.3 miles of
water/sewer/electric utility extensions from Westward to OSI.

Captains Bay Road & Utility Improvements

Public Works
Project Need: Captains Bay Road is a primary transportation route for Westward Seafoods, North
Pacific Fuel, Northland Services, Offshore Systems Inc., and several small businesses as well as resi-
dential areas. The road facilitates high traffic for heavy vehicles used by the fishing and support
industries vital to the community’s economy. In 2011 the City held public meetings regarding the Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Road Improvement Master Plan. Residents and industry representatives discussed Captains Bay Pre Design: FY20
Road and hazards its high road crown creates. The crown is needed for adequate drainage. There Engineering/Design: FY21
was strong support for improvements to Captains Bay Road. Captains Bay Road also presents future )
growth opportunities for the community as identified in the City's Comprehensive Plan. PurChaselconStruc“on: FY24
Development Plan & Status : This project is grant dependent. Drainage and paving estimates are Captains Bay Road and Utilities

based on the Ballyhoo Road Drainage & Electrical Upgrades Project. The utility expansion estimate
is based on the Henry Swanson Drive Road & Utilities Project’s utility construction costs, and other
recent materials and equipment costs.

HDR Engineering is the consultant chosen to perform a Cost-Benefit Analysis (CBA) of the proposed
Captains Bay Road Paving and Utilities Upgrade Project. The purpose of the CBA is to justify project
costs to support funding requests to upgrade, pave, illuminate, provide pedestrian walkway, and
extend utilities. The range of project benefits includes reduced road maintenance costs, reduced
vehicle maintenance costs, reduced vehicle emissions, improved safety, travel time savings, avoided
road closures (rock slides, avalanches, accidents). The project is at 65% design and broken into 3
segments over a yet to be deter-

mined number of phases. The cBA Cost Assumptions

will compare project costs against Engineering, Design, Construction Admin $5,370,000
project benefits by segment and by oth fessi [ Servi 300000
phase to enable decisions to be ther Professional Services s ’
made regarding the best approach Construction Services $35,637,692
going forward. Machinery & Equipment
Subtotal $41,307,692
Contingency (30%) $12,392,308
Total Funding Request $53,700,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Electric Proprietary Fund 0 0 0| 9,600,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 9,600,000
General Fund 2,000,000 0 0 0| 9,600,000| 9,600,000 0 0 0 0 0| 21,200,000
Grant 0 0| 4,000,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 4,000,000
Wastewater Proprietary
Fund 0 0 0 9,600,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 9,600,000
Water Proprietary Fund 0 0 0| 9,600,000 0 0 0| 9,600,000
Total 2,000,000 0| 4,000,000{ 28,800,000, 9,600,000 9,600,000 0 0 0 0 0| 54,000,000

54



Project Description: Construct paint booth / body shop at DPW to facilitate appropriate

repairs on City vehicles.

Project Need: Presently body work is accomplished inside the mechanic shop. Employ-
ees are exposed to toxic dust particles and hazardous paint spray. A stand alone bay or
building is very much needed to protect the health and well-being of employees in the
shop as well as in the rest of the building. Air gets circulated throughout the building ex-
posing all employees and visitors to toxic paint fumes.

Development Plan & Status : General fund. Construct an add-on bay to the existing
Wash Bay or construct the equipment storage building and include a body shop.

Cost Assumptions

FY23-32 CMMP

DPW Paint Booth / Body Shop
Public Works

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY23
Engineering/Design: FY24
Purchase/Construction: FY25

Engineering, Design, Const Admin 25,000

Other Professional Services 10,000

Construction Services 750,000

Machinery & Equipment 0

Subtotal 785,000

Contingency (set at 30%) 235,500

TOTAL 1,020,500

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total

General Fund 25,000 995,500 0| 1,020,500
Total 25,000 995,500 0 0| 1,020,500




Project Description: Continuous exposure to the elements shortens the useable life of

the City's rolling stock (dozers, dump trucks, graders, snow plows) and increases mainte- FY2 3 - 3 2 C M IVI P
nance costs. Winter rain & slush build-up freeze on the equipment and creates excessive

morning prep time clearing hubs, hydraulics, windshields, lights, and back-up horns prior Equipment Storage Bui|ding

to equipment use. This building will maintain an interior temperature at approximately Public Works
45F using a heated slab and keep equipment from freezing overnight and ready.

Project Need: A heated building will improve winter emergency response time and in-

crease the capabilities of Public Works. The new storage building will extend the life of Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
trucks, trailers, graders, snow plows, and snow blowers. The building will also decrease Pre Design: FY23
maintenance expense. Engineering/Design: FY24

[ Purchase/Construction: FY25

Development Plan & Status : Land is available on the Public Works site. A building per-
mit and State Fire Marshall approval will need to be obtained. The project will require a
new 1.5 inch water service and a new 6 inch sewer drain along with a new electrical ser-
vice. Funding will come from the General Fund. The project is estimated at $200 per
square feet. Building costs are then expected to be $1,545,830.

Cost Assumptions

Engineering, Design, Const Admin 195,50
Other Professional Services 34,006‘ 5 S e e
Construction Services 960,000 DY Equpment Slomge S —
Machinery & Equipment 100
Subtotal 1,189,100
Contingency (set at 30%) 356,730
TOTAL 1,545,830
Less Other Funding Sources (Grants, etc.) -
Total Funding Request$ 1,545,830
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0| 195,000| 1,350,830 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 1,545,830
Total 0 0| 195,000| 1,350,830 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 1,545,830




Project Description: Controls system upgrades to new N4 platform for 11 City owned
puildings. FY23-32 CMMP

Project Need: New N4 upgrades necessary to stay current with technology. HVAC Controls Upgrades - 11 City Buildings
Public Works

Development Plan & Status : In FY20, our HVAC controls contractor, Long Building Tech-

nologies, gave us an informal no cost quote. In FY23 we will work with Long to refine the

scope and get a solid cost estimate. In FY24, Project implementation will occur.
Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline

Pre Design: FY23
Engineering/Design: FY23
Purchase/Construction: FY24

Building Automation Systems Market
Light :Lfclmcxuwg

-
AL/ Y = oo
Cost Assumptions Infinium R monkaring & cont
Engineering, Design, Const Admin 2,000
Other Professional Services 500
Construction Services 331,213
Machinery & Equipment 0
Subtotal 333,713
Contingency (set at 30%) 100,114
TOTAL 433,827
Less Other Funding Sources
(Grants, etc)
Total Funding Request 433,827
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0| 433,827 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 433,827
Total 0 0| 433,827 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 433,827




Project Description: Phase 1 Master Plan: This project formally establishes an Unalaska
Public Trails System Master Plan by identifying and mapping existing network of side-
walks, trails, paths, former Jeep trails, 17B Easements, and gravel walkways. Consistent
signage with community branding can also be designed with project wide plans & specifi-
cations. Phase 2 Construction: Provides consistent signage design, wayfinding, improves
existing trails network, and establishes trail system maintenance protocols.

Project Need: Unalaska's existing array of walking and biking pathways are haphazard,
unmarked, lack maintenance, have no amenities, and could be used better for community
activity and attracting tourists.

Development Plan & Status : The Planning Commission held a public meeting on Sep-
tember 19, 2019 in which they reviewed the City of Unalaska’s existing Capital and Major
Maintenance Plan projects, heard public testimony, and found that a Public Trails System
is reasonable and in the public's interest. In conformance with the goals and objectives of
the Comprehensive Plan, the Planning Commission recognized the need for a coordinat-
ed, well-defined trails system in Unalaska to support health, wellness, quality of life, and
recreation and passed Resolution 2019-10. On November 12, 2019, the City Council was
presented with the Planning Commission’s Resolution 2019-10 and consented to including
the Public Trails System Project on the FY21-25 CMMP for their consideration. Collabora-
tive partnership with Ounalashka Corporation (OC), the Qawalangin Tribe (Q-Tribe), and
the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) will be key to a successful Public Trails System.
Grant opportunities exist through the Alaska Safe Routes to School program; preliminary
discussions with the Q-Tribe indicates potential cost sharing opportunities. Additional
monies will come from the General Fund.

Cost Assumptions

FY23-32 CMMP

Public Trails System
Public Works

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY21

/ Engineering/Design: FY26

Purchase/Construction: FY26

N

Engineering, Design, Const Admin 100,000
Other Professional Services 0
Construction Services 0
Machinery & Equipment 0
Subtotal 100,000
Contingency (set at 30%) 0
TOTAL 100,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0 0 0| 100,000 0 0 0 0 0| 100,000
Total 0 0 0 0| 100,000 0 0 0 0 0| 100,000

58



Project Description: Remove the UST (underground storage tank) at City Hall and replace
with an approved above ground fuel oil tank. FY2 3 -3 2 C IVI IVI P

Project Need: UST's are known to rust and begin leaking. UST's are no longer approved Underground Fuel Tank Removal / Replacement
and this tank needs to be replaced with an above ground tank with proper leak detection. Public Works

Development Plan & Status : This project will be funded by the General Fund.

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY28

[ Engineering/Design: FY28

Purchase/Construction: FY28

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000 0 0 0 0 60,000
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000 0 0 0 0 60,000




Project Description: This project includes the engineering, permitting, and dredging at

the faces of the Light Cargo Dock and the Unalaska Marine Center positions 1-7. It will FY2 3 = 3 2 C M IVI P
complement other capital projects in the Port, namely the dredging of the entrance chan-

nel. Larger vessels will be able to enter into Dutch Harbor, and now we need to ensure LCD & UMC Dredging
the depth of the dock face coincides with the new traffic. The depths at the Unalaska Ma-

rine Center vary from -32 and -45 at MLLW. Dredging at the face of the Unalaska Marine

Center would create a constant -45 from Positions 1-7. This will accommodate deeper

draft vessels throughout the facility. The existing sheet pile is driven to approximately -

58 . and dredging to -45 will not undermine the existing sheet pile. This project is primari- Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
ly to accommodate large class vessels. Many of the vessels currently calling the Port must Pre Design: FY19

adjust ballast to cross the entrance channel and dock inside the harbor. This project time- Engineering/Design: FY23

line coincides with other dredging projects, including the Light Cargo Dock (LCD). Dredging Purchase/Construction: FY23

in front of the Light Cargo Dock will also make this dock more accessible for current cus-

tomers. Vessels using the Light Cargo Dock that draws more than 22'. must place another

vessel between the dock face and their vessel in order to get enough water under the

keel.

Ports

Project Need: The completion of this dredging will enhance current and future opera-
tions by creating usable industrial dock face that is designed for vessels in varying lengths
and tonnage S ¢ ‘Bl

Development Plan & Status : This dredging project supports the recently completed
UMC position 3 and 4 Replacement project and the dredging of the entrance channel. The 0"
estimates for dredging of the Light Cargo Dock include 6000 CY of dredging and 3100 CY = =
of shot rock slope protection. The dredging material will not be removed; however, it will
be relocated on the sea floor. Dredging at UMC estimated to relocate 6000 €Y of dredging : !
material and will require approximately 1200 CY of shot rock slope.protection. w

LIGHT CARGO DOCK, BARGE, TRAMPER
Cost Assumptions BARGE IS BEING USED AS A "SPACER" TO PROVIDE DEPTH FOR
TRAMPER

Other Professional Services

Engineering, Design, Construction Admin 109,650
Construction Services 1,932,000
Machinery & Equipment

Subtotal| 2,041,650
Contingency (30%) 612,495
Total Funding Request| 2,654,145

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total

Ports Proprietary
Fund 109,650| 2,544,495 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

o

2,654,145

Total 109,650| 2,544,495 0 0

o
o
o
o
o
o
o

2,654,145




Project Description: This project is the purchase and installation of a new restroom for
the Unalaska Marine Center. Water and Sewer service has been stubbed in at UMC for
the purpose of installation of public restrooms for dock workers and passengers. City of
Unalaska Code requires connecting to City services where available. These services are
available at UMC

Project Need: For many years dock workers have used portable toilets. These outhouses
require service from the Wastewater Treatment Staff. This project will provide a mini-
mum of four toilets bring the City into compliance with City Code and EPA regulations.
The facilities will improve working conditions for employees and visitors.

Development Plan & Status : This project involves a preexisting design and the restroom
will tie into a pre-poured foundation that connects into existing utility services. The cur-
rent cost assumption is from Public Works, for approximately $700 per square foot. This
would be a from-scratch creation, a worst case scenario for funding. Ports is sourcing pre-
designed and built options to lower the cost.

Cost Assumptions T u
Engineering, Design, Construction Admin 50,000.00 /-
Other Professional Services 25,000.00
Construction Services 332,815.00
Machinery & Equipment

Subtotal 407,815.00
Contingency (30%) 122,345.00
Total Funding Request__530,160.00

FY23-32 CMMP

Restroom Unalaska Marine Center
Ports

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY23
Engineering/Design: FY24
Purchase/Construction: FY25

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Ports Proprietary
Fund 0 0 50,000| 480,160 0 0 0| 530,160
Total 0 0 50,000| 480,160 0 0 0| 530,160




Project Description: This project will design the Unalaska Marine Center Cruise ship ter-
minal. This Terminal will provide an open sheet pile design dock with mooring dolphins to

the South of Unalaska Marine Center Position 7.

Project Need: Cruise ship activity is on the rise in Unalaska and is proving to be a benefit
to local commerce. The cruise ships do not have a place to reserve with certainty as the
Unalaska Marine Center is designated for industrial cargo and fishing operations. We have
been fortunate to be able to accommodate most of the cruise ship activity, but the pas-
senger count and number of vessel call s is on the rise. With this in mind, a cruise ship
terminal would allow for dedicated cruise ship berthing. It would eliminate passengers
walking through and around cargo operations. During the off season for cruise ships this
facility could be used for fishing vessel offloads. This would allow additional revenue op-
portunity and still bolster commerce through committed berthing for the cruise ship in-

dustry.

Development Plan & Status : ROM for geotechnical is about $300,000 and ROM for de-

sign is $600,000.

FY23-32 CMMP

UMC Cruise Ship Terminal

Ports

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY20
Engineering/Design: FY24
Purchase/Construction: FY26

Cost Assumptions
Other Professional Services
Engineering, Design, Construction Admin 1,300,000
Construction Services 13,000,000
Machinery & Equipment
Subtotal 14,300,000
Contingency (30%) 4,290,000
Total Funding Request 18,590,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Ports Proprietary
Fund 390,000 0] 910,000 0| 17,290,000 0 0 0 0 0] 18,590,000
Total 390,000 0] 910,000 0| 17,290,000 0 0 0 0 0| 18,590,000

62



Project Description: The pre-design, design, and construction of a Gasifier to incinerate
garbage. FY23-32 CMMP

Project Need: The Landfill cells are reaching capacity. Unalaska has about five years to Solid Waste Gasifier
come up with alternatives for the City’s garbage or must find a new place to build new Solid Waste
cells. Thermal processing of solid waste is the future of Landfills. Gasification is a process
that uses a feedstock, often municipal or industrial waste, for a thermo chemical conver-
sion of waste in high heat. This is done in a low oxygen environment and causes material
breakdown at the molecular level. Once the molecular breakdown occurs, the gasification Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
process recombines them to form a syngas, a gas similar to natural gas. Pre Design: FY21
Engineering/Design: FY22
Development Plan & Status : Combination of grant funds and Landfill proprietary funds. [
Future funding is to be determined at a later date.

Purchase/Construction: FY25

Cost Assumptions
Engineering, Design, Const

Admin 800,000
Other Professional Services 100,000
Construction Services 3,000,000
Machinery & Equipment 2,500,000
Subtotal 6,400,000
Contingency (set at 30%) 1,920,000
TOTAL 8,320,000
Source Appropriated | 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Solid Waste Proprietary
Fund 300,000/ 400,000 0| 7,620,000 0 0 0 0 0 0| 8,320,000
Total 300,000/ 400,000 0| 7,620,000 0 0 0 0 0 0| 8,320,000




Project Description: This project will evaluate solutions to prevent the grease from en-
tering the scum decant tank. This CMMP item includes the costs for an engineering evalu-
ation and implementation of the improvements.

Project Need: At times, there can be large mats of accumulated grease in the clarifier.
While skimming, the water/grease mixture is directed down the clarifier drainpipe to the

scum decant tank. The water/grease mixture enters the scum decant tank, and the grease

re-suspends in the water, allowing the grease to flow under the baffle with the water into
the tank drain to the lift station. The grease then congeals and becomes a maintenance
challenge for the lift station.

Development Plan & Status : The budget for this project was estimated from the Water
Master Plan. A more accurate budget will be determined during the design phase of the
project. Funding for this project will come from the Wastewater Proprietary Fund.

4

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY26
Engineering/Design: FY27
Purchase/Construction: FY28

FY23-32 CMMP

Scum Decant Tank Wet Well Improvements

Wastewater

Cost Assumptions

Other Professional Services
Engineering, Design, Construction’/Admin 50,000
Construction Services 60,000
Machinery & Equipment 60,000
Subtotal 170,000
Contingency (15%) 25,500
Total Funding Request 195,500

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total

Wastewater Proprie-
tary Fund 0 0 50,000| 145,500 0| 195,500
Total 0 0 50,000| 145,500 0| 195,500




Project Description: This project involves the engineering to evaluate and installing po-

tential improvements to the two WWTP clarifiers. The evaluation should include a review FY2 3 = 3 2 C IVI IVI P

of the record drawings, a site tour of the plant, and an evaluation of alternatives to opti-

mize the configuration of the clarifiers. Wastewater Clarifier Baffling Improvements
. . . . . . Wastewater

Project Need: After screening, the wastewater is rapidly mixed with a coagulant and

polymer to improve the settling process in the clarifier. The wastewater in the first clarifi-

er portion is clear and settles well. As the wastewater effluent passes under the clarifier

baffle wall at the discharge end, the water quality degrades by becoming turbid. It is pre- Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
sumed that the settled sludge is carried downstream to the chlorine contact tanks, where Pre Design: FY28

it settles. This is very inefficient and requires the operators to clean the tank at least twice Engineering/Design: FY29

a month to prevent excessive sludge buildup. The stirred sludge also requires more chlo- [ Purchase/Construction: FY30

rine for disinfection and, as a result, more sodium bisulfate for dechlorinating. Significant

benefit will be realized in both labor and chemical costs if the clarifier’s performance is
improved.

Development Plan & Status : The budget for this project was estimated from the
Wastewater Master Plan and is an estimate at this point in the process. A more accurate
budget will be determined during the design phase of the project. Funding for this project
will come from the Wastewater Proprietary Fund.

Cost Assumptions A
Engineering, Design, Construction Admin A & i;0,000
Other Professional Services v
Construction Services $100,000
Machinery & Equipment $100,000
Subtotal $250,000
Contingency (30%) $75,000
Total Funding Request $325,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Wastewater Proprie-
tary Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50,000 275,000 0 0| 325,000
Total 0 0 0 0 50,000 275,000 0 0| 325,000




Project Description: This project includes the purchase and installation of back-pressure
valves to replace the existing check valves in the system. FY2 3 = 3 2 C IVI IVI P

Project Need: When the sludge flocculator starts, the discharge valve positions are Wastewater Sludge Pump Check Valve
opened and closed several times, and plant staff verifies that the valve position is closed

upon operation. If the valves are left open, the contents of the solids storage tank can Replacement
drain to the influent pump station. The WWTP staff are careful to set the valves to the Wastewater
appropriate position. Several options were evaluated by the City’s WWTP design consult-

ant and it was determined that replacing the sludge pump check valves with backpressure Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline

valves was the best option. This would prevent the sludge from getting past the Penn Val- Pre Design: FY24

ley sludge pumps and exiting the plant if the valve is accidently left open. Proposed for Engineering/Design: FY25

FY25 - FY26 / Purchase/Construction: FY26

Development Plan & Status : The budget for this project was estimated from the
Wastewater Master Plan and is an estimate at this point in the process. A more accurate
budget will be determined during the design phase of the project. Funding for this project
will come from the Wastewater Proprietary Fund.

Cost Assumptions

Engineering, Design, Construction

Admin _I_ 52(2)00
Other Professional Services o

Construction Services $30,000

Machinery & Equipment $20,000

Subtotal  $70,000

Contingency (30%) $21,000

Total Funding Request  $91,000

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Wastewater Proprie-

tary Fund 0 0 20,000 71,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 91,000
Total 0 0 20,000 71,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 91,000

66



Project Description: This project will replace approximately 600 linear feet of cast iron

pipe segment under Biorka Drive with ductile iron. The replacement of this pipe was de- FY2 3 - 3 2 C M IVI P
signed already by Regan Engineering, but the project was dropped when paving of Biorka

Drive, which was the driving factor, was shelved. Biorka Drive Cast Iron Waterline Rep]acement

Water
Project Need: This section of water pipe was installed in the 1940’s with cast iron pipe,

the last section of cast iron pipe in Unalaska’s water system. This line has been repaired in
the past and has been is service longer than its life expectancy. Cast iron is a brittle mate-
rial that is also susceptible to corrosion. Cast iron pipe often fails catastrophically when Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
subjected to excessive pressure surge or ground movement. Pipe failure becomes more Pre Design: FY27

frequent with a cast iron pipe as it ages and loses wall thickness to corrosion. Emergency
repairs after an unexpected catastrophic pipe failure are usually many times more expen-
sive than proactive pipe replacement due to incidental damage, overtime, lack of in-stock
repair materials, and general disruption of utility operations. Preventative replacement of
pipes with high failure risks is a good practice in order to avoid the more costly emergency
repair situation brought by a pipe failure.

Engineering/Design: FY28
Purchase/Construction: FY28

Development Plan & Status : The budget for this project was estimated from the Water
Master Plan. A more accurate budget will be determined during the design phase of the
project. Funding for this project will come from the Water Proprietary Fund. Total cost for
this project is estimated at $396,500.

Cost Assumptions e
Construction Adin 530000
Other Professional Ser-
vices
Construction Services
Machinery & Equipment $275,000
Subtotal $305,000
Contingency (30%) $91,000
Total Funding Request $396,500
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Water Proprietary
Fund 0| 396,500 0 0 0 0] 396,500
Total 0| 396,500 0 0 0 0] 396,500




Project Description: This project consists of the inspection of the water line crossing

from East Point Road to West Broadway Avenue. This underwater pipe crossing to Amak- FY2 3 = 3 2 C M IVI P
nak Island at East Point is a 12-inch ductile iron pipe installed in 1977. HDR recommends

conducting a “See Snake” system inspection for this water line due to its invasive ap- East Point Crossing Water Line Inspection
proach to pipe inspections. PICA Corporation’s See Snake system is the only insertion type Water
tool that HDR was able to identify that offers pipe wall condition assessment capability in

a 12-inch pipe application. See Snake is a device that uses an electromagnetic Remote

Field Technology to measure wall thickness and detect internal and external flaws as it

moves through a pipe. See Snake can also detect and locate external stress on a pipe due Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline

to soil movement, bridging, inadequate support, rippling, or denting. Pre Design: FY23

/ Engineering/Design: FY23

Project Need: The East Point Crossing pipe is one of only two water system connections Purchase/Construction: FY23

to Amaknak Island. Should this pipe ever fail, the consequences could be a shutdown of
all water service to Amaknak Island until the break can be located and isolated. This
would be especially devastating during processing season. Flow of water to Amaknak Is-
land could be restricted for a period of at least several weeks while waiting for the pipe to
be repaired by divers or a new pipe installed. If the break occurs under the Alyeska Sea-
foods facility the washout from the flow could cause structural damage to buildings. Giv-
en the criticality, age, and seawater exposure of this pipe, action is recommended to per-
form condition assessment and/or replace the pipe.

Development Plan & Status : The budget for this project was estimated from the Water
Master Plan. A more accurate budget will be determined during the design'phase of the
project. Funding will come from the Water proprietary Fund.

Cost Assumptions
Engineering, Design, Con- A
struction Admin

Other Professional Services o $50,000
Construction Services $75,000
Machinery & Equipment
Subtotal $125,000
Contingency (30%) $37,500
Total Funding Request $162,500
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Water Proprietary
Fund 0| 162,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 162,500
Total 0| 162,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 162,500




Project Description: This project will increase the height of the existing dam on the north
side of Icy Lake and construct a new dam on the south end of Icy Lake. The 2006 Golder- FY2 3 = 3 2 C M M P

letter describes the project as follows:

e The existing sheet pile dam at the north end of the lake would be raised 5 feet and |cy Lake Capacity Increase & Snow Basin
the dam length increased from 67 to 98 feet. . .
e A new sheet pile dam, approximately 6 feet tall by 193 feet long would be built at the Diversion
south end of the lake. Water
e Additional grading and riprap would be required for a larger spillway apron at the
north dam. Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
e  Riprap would be required for wave erosion protection of the south dam. Pre Design: FY31
e Grouting at the north and south dams would be required to seal fractured bedrock. Engineering/Design: FY32
/ Purchase/Construction: FY32

Project Need: Additional capacity for raw water storage at Icy Lake would be beneficial
to help span processing seasons that occur during the more prolonged and frequent dry
weather periods. Water system operators use the lake to “bank” surplus water between
processing seasons when demand is low, so that by the beginning of a processing season
the utility is starting out with a full lake. During heavy processing the lake level gradually
drops as demands exceed the combined capacity of Icy Creek and the wells, and opera-
tors release lake water into Icy Creek. This operational strategy has been stressed in re-
cent years when dry weather coincides with processing seasons and the lake is drawn
nearly empty. If the lake is run empty and the water system is not able to meet demands,
water rationing and reducing fish processing throughput or diverting fish to processors in
other communities would be required.

Development Plan & Status : The budget for this project was estimated from.the Water
Master Plan. A more accurate budget will be determined during the design phase of the
project. Funding for this project will come from the Proprietary:Fund and'State Grants.

Cost Assumptions

Engineering, Design, Construction Admin R 5_1;0,000
Other Professional Services o $30,000
Construction Services $2,020,000
Machinery & Equipment
Subtotal 2,200,000
Contingency (30%) $660,000
Total Funding Request 2,860,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Water Proprietary
Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0[ 2,860,000 0| 2,860,000
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 2,860,000 0| 2,860,000




Project Description: This project will survey Icy Lake reservoir consisting of a topographic
survey of the shoreline and shallow areas around the lake. A water resources engineer FY2 3 = 3 2 C M M P
will determine the precise stage-storage (Depth and Volume) relationship and curve and
analyze the hydrographic and topographic survey results. The stage-storage curve should Icy Lake Hydrographic Survey
allow operators to quickly determine the exact volume of available water at various water Water
surface elevations. The stage-storage relationship could also be added to the utility
SCADA system so the SCADA system automatically calculates and displays the lake's vol-
ume of available water in real-time.

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline

Project Need: Icy Lake provides impounded raw water storage for Unalaska and is used Pre Design: FY24
during periods of low water and/or significant demand. The Lake is impounded behind a Engineering/Design: FY24
sheet pile dam at its outlet. Water from the lake is released using a remote controlled / Purchase/Construction: FY24
valve at the sheet pile dam to fill the Icy Creek Reservoir. The exact volume of the lake is

unknown but estimates range from between 52 MG and 61 MG, with a volume of 57 MG
at the spillway elevation. Without accurate bathymetry of the lake bottom, the Utility
must estimate stage-storage of the lake in order to know how much available water re-
mains in the lake at any given water surface elevation. If the Utility's estimate of remain-
ing water is overly conservative, the result could be premature water rationing, impacting
utility customers, especially the fish processors. If the Utility overestimates the remaining
water, then it could run out of water faster than expected. An accurate hydrographic sur-
vey of the lake would enable precise determinations of the available water and more
effectively manage water supplies.

Development Plan & Status : The budget for this project was estimated from the Water
Master Plan. A more accurate budget will be determined during thedesign phase of the
project. The funding for this project will come from the Proprietary Fund.

Cost Assumptions y A J
Engineering, Design,
Construction Admin N 55;000
cher Professional Ser- <41 000
vices
Construction Services
Machinery & Equipment $10,000
Subtotal $56,000
Contingency (30%) $16,800
Total Funding Request $72,800
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Water Proprietary
Fund 0 0 72,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 72,800
Total 0 0 72,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 72,800




Project Description: This project would add water metering and a booster pump system
at the Agnes Beach PRV station. The water metering will aid in leak detection, and utility
management and understanding of where water is being used and when. The booster
pump will provide water supply redundancy to Westward Seafoods, one of the largest
customers in the water system, as well as redundancy to any further development along

Captain’s Bay Road.

Project Need: The Agnes Beach PRV station drops the pressure of water from Pressure
Zone 2 (Captains Bay Road) to Pressure Zone 3 (Town) hydraulic grade. The station also
allows for water to flow to the higher elevation areas of Haystack Hill with an option to
allow external boosting in the event of a fire demand on Haystack Hill. The current PRV
set up does not allow any method of measuring water flow through the station and se-
verely limits the ability to reverse flow from the wells in the lower pressure Zone 3 to
higher pressure Zone 2 (Westward Seafoods). A booster pump will allow for the pumping
of water from the lower pressure zone to the higher pressure zone in the event of a shut-

down of the Pyramid Water Treatment Plant due to, for example, high turbidity.

Development Plan & Status : The budget for this project was estimated from the Water
Master Plan. A more accurate budget will be determined during the design phase of the
project. Funding for the project will come from the Water proprietary Fund.

Cost Assumptions

Engineering, Design,
Construction Admin

Other Professional Ser-
vices

Construction Services

Machinery & Equipment

$50,000

$20,000

$160,000
$70,000

Subtotal
Contingency (30%)

$300,000
$90,000

Total Funding Request

$390,000

Installation of Meter and Booster Pump at

Agnes Beach PRV Station
Water

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY28

FY23-32 CMMP

Engineering/Design: FY29
Purchase/Construction: FY30

Source

Appropriated 2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

2031

2032

Total

Water Proprietary
Fund

o

70,000

320,000

o

390,000

Total

o

70,000

320,000

o

390,000




Project Description: This project will construct a second 2.6 million gallon Chlorine Con-

tact Tank (CT Tank) next to the existing CT Tank. It will provide much needed clear water FY2 3 = 3 2 C M IVI P

storage and enable maintenance to be done on the interior of either tank regardless of

process seasons or weather. The project will require the installation of approximately 200 Pyramid Water Storage Tank

ft. of 16” DI water main, 200 ft. of 8” DI drain line, and 100 ft. each of 1” sample line and Water

control wiring

Project Need: Additional storage provided by this tank will help to meet many of the

issues mentioned in the 2004 Water Master Plan. Even in the Water Distribution System’s Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline

current configuration, this new tank will provide an additional 960,000 gallons of the addi- Pre Design: FY14

tional 4 MG of finished water storage recommended in the Master Plan. When planned Engineering/Design: FY23

future development is completed on Captain’s Bay Road, over 2.2 MG of water storage Purchase/Construction: FY24

will be available at the maximum Pyramid Water Treatment Plant capacity of 9 MGD. The

additional storage will provide a much needed buffer, allowing time to troubleshoot and

repair problems in the event of an equipment failure or system malfunction. It will reduce
the likelihood of water shortages and/or outages during the Pollock Processing seasons.

Additional benefits include:

e Reduce service interruption, boil water notices, and risk of system contamination
during maintenance.

e Allow routine maintenance to be done on the interior or exterior of either tank'dur=
ing any season, prolonging the life of these tanks.

e Expand and upgrade both the water treatment and distribution systems, using the
full 9 MGD design capacity of the new water treatment plant will be possible.

e Improve the flow characteristics of the new Pyramid Water Treatment Plant. Plant
operators will be able to allow the tanks to absorb the high anddow flows,/maintain-
ing a more stabilized treatment process and allowing the new Ultra Violate treatment
process to operate more efficiently.

Development Plan & Status : A "Certificate to Construct” and a "Certificate to Operate"
are required from ADEC, obtained through

A S i Engineering, Design, Const Admin 647,000 .
application by the designing engineer.

Other Professional Services -
Construction Services 6,379,879
Machinery & Equipment -
Subtotal 7,026,879

Contingency (set at 30%) 2,108,064
TOTAL 9,134,943

Less Other Funding Sources (Grants, etc.) -

Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total

Water Proprietary
Fund 625,000 603,750| 7,906,193 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

o

9,134,943

Total 625,000 603,750| 7,906,193 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

o

9,134,943




Project Description: This project consists of constructing one or more sediment traps in
Icy Creek upstream of the reservoir. The sediment trap system should essentially be a FY2 3 = 3 2 C M M P

series of deep, wide step pools with rock check dams along the creek that decrease the

flow velocity and allow rocks and sediment to settle out. The sediment traps should also Sediment Traps Between Icy Lake and Icy Creek
create a location for rocks and sediment to accumulate that would be easier for heavy .
equipment to access, easier to clean out, and potentially allow the reservoir and Pyramid Reservoir
WTP to remain in service while the upstream sediment traps are being cleaned. Although Water
the sediment traps will not eliminate shutdown of the Pyramid WTP due to turbidity
spikes during high flow events, it could reduce the occurrence and duration of shutdowns. Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline

Pre Design: FY26
Project Need: Large amounts of rock and sediment move downstream along Icy Creek Engineering/Design: FY26
during high flow events. The rocks accumulate at the inlet end of the Icy Creek Reservoir / Purchase/Construction: FY27
as seen in Figure 30 and heavier sediment accumulates behind the dam. The rocks and

sediment reduce the capacity of the reservoir. Draining of the reservoir and removal of
rocks and sediment is a challenging exercise that is required periodically and also requires
a lengthy shutdown of the Pyramid WTP. Turbidity issues due to suspended fine-grained
sediments during high flow events also regularly cause shutdown of the Pyramid Water
Treatment Plant.

Development Plan & Status : The budget for this project was estimated from the Water
Master Plan. A more accurate budget will be determined during the design phase of the
project. Funding for this Project will come from the Water Proprietary Fund.

Cost Assumptions

Engineering, Design, Construction Admin B iS_0,000
Other Professional Services o $50,000
Construction Services $400,000
Machinery & Equipment
Subtotal $500,000
Contingency (30%) $150,000
Total Funding Request $650,000
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Water Proprietary
Fund 0 0 0| 650,000 0 0 0 0 0 0| 650,000
Total 0 0 0| 650,000 0 0 0 0 0 0| 650,000

73



Project Description: This project in both Well House 1 and Well House 2 will include the removal of
the existing Chlorine Gas system and the installation of an on-site system which generates liquid
Chlorine (Sodium Hypochlorite) using salt and electricity.

Project Need: Using stringent regulations, the EPA is doing away with Chlorine Gas as the primary
method of disinfecting potable water.

Vendors for Chlorine Gas are becoming scarce as most Water Treatment Plants and other users
have already changed over to an alternative. There are only two remaining Chlorine Gas vendors
located on or near the west coast which will ship to Alaska. We are currently using the vendor who
is located on the coast. If they cease to carry Chlorine Gas, the remaining vendor is twice the price
due to the extra cost involved in shipping the Chlorine Gas to the west coast from Nevada. In June
of 2021, Chlorine Gas manufacturers across the US declared a “Force Majeure” due to production
issues. The price for Chlorine Gas increased in mid-August 2021.

Since both well houses are located in residential areas, using Chlorine Gas at these locations is a
clear safety concern due to the possibility of a Chlorine Gas leak. This hazard continues to increase
as more housing is developed and constructed. On-site generation at the well houses will eliminate

FY23-32 CMMP

WH1 and WH2 On-site Generation of Chlorine

Water

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline
Pre Design: FY24
Engineering/Design: FY24
Purchase/Construction: FY24

tLﬁ Optional Contact )
H pMixing Tank 230v Chlorinator
,,JLiJ L - = Pump
- ¢

....... " )_\
this safety issue. Treated —
Water Out
Also, potable water treated with Chlorine Gas is more acidic than Sodium Hypochlorite. Combined ‘ )
with the rise in EPA’s standards, there is a very high possibility that we will be required to performa el
corrosion control study and begin adding a corrosion control inhibitor to our potable water. Switch- Drain/Flush
ing to Sodium Hypochlorite will help lower the acid index of our drinking water. This will lessen the Co:i:’; fr:'nk = v*f
possibility of having to perform the study or add an inhibitor. lniecﬁ-fon [
Check Valve Well Head
In addition, the multiple safety items associated with Chlorine Gas that we are requiredto.own are
very expensive, highly regulated and take a significant amount of time to maintain.
Development Plan & Status : This project will require a consultant for design.and engineering
to obtain Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation approval. A contractor will be Cost Assumptions
needed for construction. Engineering, Design, Construction Admin $60,000
Other Professional Services
Construction Services $185,000
Machinery & Equipment $100,000
Subtotal $345,000
Contingency (30%) $103,500
Total Funding Request _ $448,500
Source Appropriated 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Water Proprietary
Fund 0 0| 448,500 0 0 0| 448,500
Total 0 0| 448,500 0 0 0| 448,500




	TelAlaska_Unalaska_Lot9CapeCheerful_CellSiteProposal_SitePlan_Dec.pdf
	UNALASKA_TowerSitesCombined_Dec2021_UpdateMarkAirSiteCl
	UNALASKA_TowerSitesCombined_Dec2021_UpdateMarkAirSiteIm

	10_draft_cmmp_fy23-32.pdf
	Staff Memo Draft CMMP
	Request Summary 20220105
	FY23-32 CMMP Summary Sheets 20220105


	Current Zone Designation: High Density Residential  5 units plus
	Proposed Zone Designations if applicable: 
	Current Land Uses: Empty
	Proposed Land Uses if changing: Cell Tower Site
	Property Owner: Ounalashka Corporation
	Property Owner Address: PO Box 149, Unalaska, AK 99685
	Street Address of Property: Not Currently Addressed
	Applicants Name: TelAlaska, Inc
	Mailing Address: 201 E 56th Ave
	Email: 
	Day Time Phone: 
	Message Phone: 
	Tax Lot ID No: 0110220
	Lot: 9
	Block: 
	Tract: 
	Subdivision: Cape Cheeful
	USS: 
	Range: 118W
	Sections 1: 3
	Township: 73S
	SUBDIVISION: 
	Blocks: 
	Lot s: 
	Tract s: 
	USS_2: 
	Containing: 
	Acres: 
	Lots: 
	Tracts: 
	Surveyor Name: 
	undefined: 
	undefined_2: 
	Contact Details   Email: 
	Phone Number: 
	Date: December 29, 2021
	Group1: Choice3
	Description: Use of Lot 9, Cape Cheerful as a Cell Tower Site. Lot 9 is within 500 of a residential zoned district.


